
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for June 22, 2017 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Previous Minutes

Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2017, Regular Council Meeting and June 9, 2017, Special

Council Meeting...............................................................................................................................1 

III. Persons to Be Heard

a. Public Hearing, Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the

Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs .............................................................................10 

b. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

IV. Unfinished Business

None

V. New Business 

a. Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the Schedule of Fees,

Charges, and Tariffs ...........................................................................................................18 

b. Resolution No. 2017–18, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the American Legion

Post 17 for Use of Public Property in Conjunction With Fourth of July Celebrations ......26 

c. Resolution No. 2017–19, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the Kodiak Football

League for its Football Camp Fundraiser and to Collect Admission Fees and Sell

Concessions at Baranof Park .............................................................................................32 

d. Authorization of Animal Control Contract With the Kodiak Island Borough...................38

e. Authorization of Bid Award for FY2018 Petroleum Products ..........................................48

f. Authorization of Bid Award for FY2018 Sodium Chloride ..............................................54

g. Authorization of Bid Award of Kodiak Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge

Installation, Project No. 17-03/7519 ..................................................................................60 

h. Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Upper Bettinger Dam Seismic

Stability Analysis, Project No. 18-01/7042 .......................................................................64 

i. Authorization of Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Contract for Wastewater

Treatment Plant Centrifuge Installation Construction Phase Engineering Services, Project

No. 17-03/7519 ..................................................................................................................74 

VI. Staff Reports

a. City Manager

b. City Clerk

VII. Mayor’s Comments

VIII. Council Comments

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231)

X. Adjournment 



(This page left intentionally blank.) 



8216 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, JUNE 8, 2017 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Laura B. Arboleda, 

Charles E. Davidson, Richard H. Walker and John B. Whiddon were present and constituted a 

quorum. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop and Gabriel T. Saravia were absent. City Manager 

Mike Tvenge, City Clerk Debra Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were also 

present. 

Salvation Army Major Dave Davis gave the invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the May 25, 2017, regular meeting 

as presented. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD

a. Presentation of GFOA Award to the Finance Department

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) notified the City that the Finance De-

partment received a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in financial reporting for the 

City’s FY2016 comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR). The award of this certificate rep-

resents one of the highest levels of achievement in governmental financial reporting for the De-

partment and City. 

Finance Director Kelly Mayes accepted the award for the Finance Department. She highlighted 

the seven staff within the Finance Department and provided a brief overview of some of the roles 

and responsibilities. She thanked the staff for their service and dedication. 

b. Proclamation: Filipino American Heritage Month

Councilmember Arboleda read the proclamation, which recognizes Filipino Americans for their 

vital contributions to our community and urges citizens to participate in festivities celebrating the 

rich heritage and traditions of the Philippine Islands. 

Mary Guiles Hawver accepted the on behalf of the Fil-Am Association. She said June 12, 2017, 

is the 119
th

 anniversary of Philippines’ independence. She said there are cultural festivities on

June 17, 2017. She thanked the Council and stated they are very proud to be part of the Kodiak 

community. 

1



JUNE 8, 2017 8217 

c. Public Comments

Lawrence Anderson, Vice President of Senior Citizens of Kodiak Inc. provided a quarterly re-

port, which included updates on meal service and home meal delivery, Medicare education, and 

Lifeline services. He said a survey was recently administered to senior citizens, and a common 

response from seniors was that the services they receive help them live independently. He 

thanked the Council for its grants and the community for their donations. 

Sharon Blakeslee, telephonically, said she supports the crane in the FY2018 budget. She said 

her husband is out of town and she is calling on his behalf.  

Leonard Carpenter, telephonically, said he is an owner of a small vessel and he supports the 

crane at the harbor.  

Ryan Dunlap, telephonically, said he supports the crane in the harbor budget. He said it can 

bring economic benefits to the community. 

George Rieth thanked the Council for their work, and he commented on the budget process and 

stated the Council has some hard work of ahead of them. He recommended a change in financial 

direction to occur for sustainability. 

Darius Kasprzak said he is President of the Alaska Jig Association and he supports the crane in 

the FY2018 harbor budget. He said the Harbormaster and Port and Harbors Advisory Board have 

been working well to support the harbor users, and he thanked the Council for their support.  

Bob Bowhac said he supports the harbor facilities and looks forward to the shower and bath-

room completion in Fisherman’s Hall in the near future. He said he supports the crane and the 

Kodiak Salmon Work Group, which will help fisherman better manage their resources.  

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1363, Levying Taxes and Appro-

priating Funds for the Expenses and Liabilities of the City of Kodiak for the Fiscal

Year Commencing on the First Day of July 2017 and Ending on the Thirtieth Day of

June 2018

Mayor Branson read Ordinance No. 1363 by title. Ordinance No. 1363 provides for the adoption 

of the City of Kodiak’s FY2018 budget. The budget document, which supports the ordinance, es-

timates all sources of revenue the City anticipates receiving between July 1, 2017, and June 30, 

2018. The budget document also establishes an operating and capital expenditure plan for 

FY2018, which is based on staff’s assessment of operational and community needs and the 

Council’s FY2018 budget goals. Staff made the FY2018 budget presentation to Council and the 

public during a special budget work session on May 6, 2017. 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to adopt Ordinance No. 1363. 

Mayor Branson closed the regular meeting, opened and closed the public hearing when no one 

came forward to testify, and reopened the regular meeting. 

2



JUNE 8, 2017 8218 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

V. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Resolution No. 2017–16, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the High School Tennis

Team for the Use of Public Property for Its Tennis Clinic Fundraiser

Mayor Branson read Resolution No. 2017–16 by title. The high school tennis coach, Steve John-

ston, requested the use of Baranof Park tennis courts to run tennis clinics and lessons as a fund-

raiser from June 8 through October 31. The purpose is to promote the sport and use of the courts 

while raising money for the high school tennis team, which is completely self-funded. The team 

raises money to cover the cost of travel and other costs associated with tennis. 

Councilmember Arboleda MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2017–16. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

b. Authorization of Service Agreement With Johnson Controls, Inc., for Annual Inspec-

tion and Preventative Maintenance of the Kodiak Police Station Building Control Sys-

tems

This authorization would award a multi-year service agreement to Johnson Controls, Inc. to pro-

vide preventative maintenance and correction of minor deficiencies encountered during routine 

inspections of the fire, security, and mechanical systems utilized within the Kodiak Police Sta-

tion. The amounts are as follows: $35,768 for FY2018; $37,199 for FY2019; and $38,687 for 

FY2020.  

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize the three-year service agreement with Johnson 

Controls, Inc. in the amount of $111,654 for annual inspection and preventative maintenance of 

the Kodiak Police Station building control systems, with first-year funds in the amount of 

$35,768, coming from FY2018 General Fund, Police Administration, Professional Services ac-

count. 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to postpone the vote to a future meeting to be determined by 

the City Manager.  

The roll call vote on the postponement was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

c. Authorization of the Financial Contributions for Salmon Work Group

The Kodiak Salmon Work Group (KSWG) has been re-established to address the present salmon 

allocation crisis. The group provided a presentation to the City Council and Borough Assembly 

at a Joint work session on April 19, 2017. The KSWG requested $15,000 from each governing 

body for FY2017 and FY2018. 

3



 JUNE 8, 2017 8219 

 

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize a payment to the Kodiak Salmon Work Group of 

$15,000 for FY2017 from the Economic Development line item. 

 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to amend the motion to insert at the end of the main motion 

“and request a detailed financial report of how funds are expended.” 

 

The roll call vote on the amendment was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The amendment passed. 

 

The roll call vote on the main motion as amended was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, 

Walker, and Whiddon in favor. Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion 

passed. 

 

d. Authorization to Cancel the July 27 and August 24, 2017, Regular Meetings and Au-

thorize the City Manager to Schedule a Special Meeting if Needed 
 

The regularly scheduled Council meetings for July and August may be cancelled to reflect the 

summer meeting schedule. Elected officials and staff will attend the summer Alaska Municipal 

League conference August 15 through August 18. Staff discussed the meeting schedule with the 

Council at the May 23 work session, and Council recommended cancelling the July 27 and Au-

gust 24, 2017, regular meetings and scheduling a special meeting if needed. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to cancel the July 27 and August 24, 2017, regular meetings 

and authorize the City Manager to schedule a special meeting if needed. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 

e. Authorization of the Delta Medical Transport Agreement 
 

The City operates a medical treatment and transport (ambulance) service via the City of Kodiak 

Fire Department. Due to recent staff turnover in the Fire Department, the City is requesting tem-

porary outsourcing of ambulance transportation services to Delta Medical Transport, LLC, which 

is the only ALS ground provider in the State.  

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to authorize Medical Services Agreement No. 231942 with 

Delta Medical Transport, LLC in the amount of $189,275 from the Fire Department budget and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker, and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

 

VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 

a. City Manager 

 

Manager Tvenge said he did not have a report, although his office has been very busy. 

4



 JUNE 8, 2017 8220 

 

 

b. City Clerk 

 

City Clerk Marlar informed the public of June scheduled Council meetings. 

 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Branson congratulated Finance Director Kelly Mayes and staff for the GFOA award. She 

said that Senator Dan Sullivan will be in town this weekend to explore the needs of the commu-

nity. She made a few comments on the FY2018 budget and affirmed there have been 19 scenari-

os proposed by staff to address the budget deficit. She said although she is not a voting member 

of the Council, she supports keeping the senior exemption program the same; she emphasized the 

State has already taken away the longevity program. She said many seniors turning the age of 65 

look forward to the exemption, and it enhances the quality of life. She said the sales cap needs to 

be raised based on information provided by the Finance Director and suggested leaving the rental 

tax the same. She suggested the two percent discount for early sales tax filing be eliminated. She 

suggested a City tobacco tax. She said cutting existing services can be reviewed and more is al-

ready being done with less. She expressed that the fund balance gap can be closed with these and 

other scenarios. She said the balancing of a budget is a complicated process and stated as a 

community, we are all in this together. She said a lazy way to amend the budget is simply make 

cuts. She noted the City Council is very transparent and looks for public input to adopt a sustain-

able budget while meeting public needs. She noted the State is running out of money as well. 

 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Walker said they have been working on the budget for months; he said it is a 

balancing act to be fiscally responsible and to provide services. He encouraged the public to 

make comments about the budget and service delivery. He congratulated the Finance Department 

for the GFOA award. 

 

Councilmember Davidson congratulated the Finance Director and staff on the FY2016 award. 

He thanked the firefighters for their service and the sacrifices they are making due to the staff 

shortage. He spoke about the reserve balance and commented the revenue will have to be in-

creased for the City. He reminded citizens of the children in the streets and to drive safely. 

 

Councilmember Arboleda congratulated the Finance Department and the City staff for their 

work. She said she supports a conservative approach on the budget. 

 

Councilmember Whiddon recognized Finance Director Mayes and staff for doing a superb job. 

He thanked Fire Chief Mullican and Deputy Chief Dorner for keeping the firehouse intact and 

providing services. He said the Council is not finished with the budget, and the City can’t sustain 

a $2.3 million deficit. He requested, and the Council concurred, that the budget discussion con-

tinue at the July 11, 2017, work session to further discuss revenues, enhancements, and addition-

al cuts. 

 

 

 

 

5



JUNE 8, 2017 8221 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS

Library Director Baxter invited the public to the Library during the month of June, and she 

shared the level of attendance has increased at the facility. She thanked the community for sup-

porting a recent scribble box activity for the youth.  

Lawrence Anderson spoke against budget cuts; he said it hurts communities and individuals. He 

believes the Council will figure out a way to sustain the budget. He spoke in support of the Parks 

and Recreation services, especially for the youth. He spoke in favor of volunteers and stated the 

community can work together to solve the budgetary issues. 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Arboleda, Davidson, Walker and Whiddon in favor. 

Councilmembers Bishop and Saravia were absent. The motion passed. 

The meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved: 

6



8222 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD FRIDAY, JUNE 9, 2017 

IN THE CITY CONFERENCE ROOM 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Pat Branson called the meeting to order at 12:03 p.m. Councilmembers Randall C. Bishop, 

Charles E. Davidson, Gabriel T. Saravia, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon were present 

and constituted a quorum. Councilmember Laura B. Arboleda was absent. City Manager Mike 

Tvenge and City Clerk Debra Marlar were also present. 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. Discussion of Strategies for Potential Collective Bargaining Agreements

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to enter into executive session pursuant to AS 

44.62.310(c)(1) to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an ad-

verse effect upon the finances of the City, specifically the City’s strategies for potential collec-

tive bargaining agreements. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in 

favor. Councilmember Arboleda was absent. The motion passed. 

The Council entered into executive session at 12:04 p.m. 

Mayor Branson reconvened the special meeting at 1:15 p.m. 

IV. ADJOURNMENT

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Saravia, Walker, and Whiddon in fa-

vor. Councilmember Arboleda was absent. The motion passed. 

The meeting adjourned at 1:16 p.m. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

7



JUNE 9, 2017 8223 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Minutes Approved: 

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

9



JUNE 22, 2017 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: June 22, 2017 

Agenda Item: III. a.  Public Hearing on Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Sections 9, 10, and 

12 of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs 

SUMMARY: The City sets its fees and charges for various services by a resolution of the Council. The 

Council has requested a public hearing prior to amending fees, which is scheduled as New Business item 

V. a, Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Section 9, (Harbor and Shipyard), Section 10 (Laboratory), 

and Section 12 (Parks and Recreation) of the Schedule of Fees, Charges and Tariffs. The proposed fee 

changes are recommended to become effective July 1, 2017. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2017–17 

10



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2017–17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 
SECTIONS 9, 10, AND 12 OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES, AND TARIFFS 

WHEREAS, at the February 18, 2017, regular meeting the Kodiak City Council 
approved its budget goals for FY2018, including annually reviewing and updating the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs; and 

WHEREAS, staff reviewed the Schedule of Fees and Charges, and it was 
decided to bring forth amendments to the City fees; and 

WHEREAS, the suggested fee amendments herein reflect the City’s cost to 
provide services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, 
Alaska, that Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the City’s Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs 
are hereby amended as follows: 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede previous 
resolutions amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the Schedules of Fees, Charges and 
Tariffs. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the changes to Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs herein shall be effective July 1, 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized to make the 
required changes to the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs. 

Section 9 Harbor 

A day is defined as a calendar day, midnight to midnight or portion thereof. 
9.1 Disposal 

9.1.1 Drums, each 55 gallon ..................................................................................................24.00 
9.1.2 Containment boom, per foot, per day, plus labor .......................................................... 0.60 
9.1.3 Sorbent pads and boom ................................................................................................cost + 10% 
9.1.4 Petroleum products and bilge waste, per gallon 

9.1.4.1 Used oil ....................................................................................................................... 1.20 
9.1.4.2 Oily bilge water, vessels under 400 gross tons .......................................................... 2.75 
9.1.4.3 Oily bilge water, vessels over 400 gross tons ............................................................ 5.00 
9.1.4.4 Testing and other necessary services ........................................................................cost + 10% 

9.2 Dry Storage 
No charge for fishing gear storage for the first three (3) days. Minimum charge is $10.00 
or per square foot fee, whichever is greater. 

9.2.1 Daily, per square foot .................................................................................................... 0.04 

Attachment A

11



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 2 of 6 

Section 9 Harbor (continued) 

9.2.2 Weekly, per square foot ................................................................................................ 0.14 
9.2.3 Monthly, per square foot ............................................................................................... 0.47 
9.2.4 Annual, per square foot ................................................................................................. 1.40 
9.2.5 Impounded vessels: cost of labor, equipment, and storage .........................................cost + 10% 

9.3 Electric Service, temporary, per day 
9.3.1 120-volt single-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ..................................18.00 
9.3.2 208-volt single-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ..................................41.50 
9.3.3 208-volt three-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ...................................47.50 
9.3.4 Electric cord rental, per day 

30-amp 120-volt twist lock cords ................................................................................ 7.50 
9.3.5 Electric plug rental, per day 

30-amp twist lock GFI to 20-amp straight blade ......................................................... 6.00 
208 single phase to 30-amp twist lock .......................................................................12.00 
208 three phase to 208 single phase .........................................................................18.00 

9.4 Tidal Grid, per foot, per tide ............................................................................................. 2.40 
9.5 Services and equipment rental 

9.5.1 Backhoe/loader, with operator, per 1/2 hour .................................................................89.00 
9.5.2 Fork Lift 

9.5.2.1 4-ton, with operator, per 1/2 hour ...............................................................................89.00 
9.5.3 Labor and Materials 

9.5.3.1 City employees, straight time, per hour ......................................................................77.00 
9.5.3.2 City employees, overtime, per hour ............................................................................107.00 
9.5.3.3 Non-City labor and miscellaneous materials ..............................................................cost + 10% 

9.5.4 Pumps 

9.5.4.1 Dewatering, electric, per day ......................................................................................36.00 
9.5.4.2 Dewatering, electric, per week ...................................................................................142.00 
9.5.4.3 Dewatering, electric, per month ..................................................................................350.00 
9.5.4.4 Dewatering gasoline, per day .....................................................................................60.00 
9.5.4.5 Sewage, vessel or RV pump-out, per use ..................................................................12.00 

9.5.5 Tanker, used oil, with operator, per hour ......................................................................154.00 
9.5.6 Vessel, with operator, per hour .....................................................................................122.00 

9.6 

9.6.1 
9.6.2 

Dockage for commercial fishing vessels at piers and docks (all other 
vessels charged per port tariff) 
 Vessels 80’ and under .............................................................................................................................

 Vessels 81’ and over ...............................................................................................................................

 Includes Dock 1, Oscar's Dock, Piers 1, 2, & 3.

 Dockage fees shall be equal to the vessel’s daily moorage rate, or the per foot rate,
whichever is greater. Vessels with exclusive moorage, and vessels which have paid
their annual daily moorage ceiling, receive the first day free when scheduled in
advance. Dockage fees do not apply to the moorage ceiling.

1.80 
2.10 

9.7 Moorage, exclusive, annual 
 Exclusive moorage means a permanently assigned slip for a specific vessel. Moorage

is calculated depending upon vessel length: Length x rate per linear foot.

 Length = length of vessel, including all fixed protuberances or length of slip, whichever
is greater.

 Vessels moored at posted restricted areas in excess of the allotted time shall incur a
moorage charge at double the daily rate, until the vessel has departed.

 20% surcharge for vessels wider than 80% of the slip water space

 50% surcharge for vessels wider than 100% of the slip water space

9.7.1 0 to 20 feet ....................................................................................................................35.55 
9.7.2 21 to 30 feet ..................................................................................................................35.55 
9.7.3 31 to 40 feet ..................................................................................................................35.55 

12



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 3 of 6 

Section 9 Harbor (continued) 
9.7.4 41 to 60 feet ..................................................................................................................  48.59 
9.7.5 61 to 80 feet ..................................................................................................................  72.29 
9.7.6 81 to 100 feet ................................................................................................................  84.73 
9.7.7 101 to 120 feet ..............................................................................................................  97.17 
9.7.8 121 to 150 feet ..............................................................................................................  105.47 
9.7.9 151 feet +  .....................................................................................................................  118.50 

9.8 Moorage, open/daily ........................................................................................................  
 Daily moorage shall stop accruing when an amount equal to 100% of the annual 

exclusive moorage has been reached. 

 Vessels moored at posted restricted areas in excess of the allotted time shall incur a 
moorage charge at double the daily rate, until the vessel has departed. 

 Vessels under 21' receive one free day per month at designated areas only, on first-
come, first-served basis. 

1/60 of the 
annual moorage 

rate 

9.9 Parking  
9.9.1 Trailers at designated long-term parking areas  

9.9.1.1 Daily ............................................................................................................................  6.00 
9.9.1.2 Monthly .......................................................................................................................  89.00 

9.9.2 Permit parking for harbor customers in designated 30-day lots adjacent 
to the harbors, per day .....................................................................................................  
 Permits available to vessel slip holders and paid up transient vehicles only. Except 

that permits may be sold to the general public in the 30-day lot north of Ramp 1, St. 
Herman Harbor. 

 
1.00 

9.10 Gravel ramp use at SHH and SPH  
9.10.1 Aircraft, per launch or retrieval ......................................................................................  89.00 
9.10.2 Vessels under 76 feet in length, per foot, per tide ........................................................  1.20 
9.10.3 Vessels 76 feet and longer, per foot, per tide ...............................................................  1.80 
9.10.4 Annual usage fee (must be paid in advance) ................................................................  2,370.00 

9.11 Waiting list, per year ........................................................................................................  30.00 
9.12 

 
Launch ramp (exclusive slip holders and personal pleasure boats of 
persons sixty-five years of age or older are exempt) 

 

9.12.1 Daily ..............................................................................................................................  10.00 
9.12.2 Annual ...........................................................................................................................  118.50 

9.13 
9.13.1 

Administrative fees 
Slip transfer fee, per vessel .............................................................................................  

 
18.00 

9.13.2 Account sent to collections ..............................................................................................  118.50 
9.14 
9.15 

Vessel sewage disposal at Pier II per day (dockage charged separately) ......................  
Harbor Shower Fee, per time period ............................................................................  

              89.00 
6.00 

 
9.16 

 

Shipyard 

 

  Payment, without pre-approved credit, is 50% of the estimated yard fees and is due 
before the lift; the remainder must be paid prior to launch. 

 Lifts taking more than four hours will be assessed extra labor and/or machine time. 

 Dry dockage is assessed the entire time the vessel remains in the yard. 

 

9.16.1 Lift, Block, and Launch  
9.16.1.1 Vessels up to 80’ ........................................................................................................  69.00/ft 
9.16.1.2 81’ to 100’ ...................................................................................................................  78.00/ft 
9.16.1.3 101’ to 120’ .................................................................................................................  94.00/ft 
9.16.1.4 121’ to 150’ .................................................................................................................  111.00/ft 
9.16.1.5 151’ and up .................................................................................................................  120.00/ft 

9.16.2 After hours surcharge .................................................................................................  + 20% / ft 
9.16.2.1 Nonstandard Lift (operator and lift) ...............................................................................  1,500.00/hr 
9.16.2.2 Travel strap set up ........................................................................................................  T,M&E *+ 15% 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

13



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 4 of 6 

Section 9.16 Shipyard (continued) 
 

9.16.2.3 
 
Inspection Lift, includes 1 hour hang time free .............................................................  

 
75% of lift per 

launch 
9.16.2.4 Hang Time (other than wash pad).................................................................................  275.00 ea. 

addl. hour 
9.16.2.4.1  Hang Time, on wash pad ...........................................................................................  200.00/hr 
9.16.2.4.2  Hang Time, on heated wash pad ...............................................................................  300.00/hr 

9.16.5 Delay of Lift ...................................................................................................................  250.00/half 
hour 

9.16.6 Pressure Wash (and scrape if necessary) ....................................................................  T, M, & E* 
9.16.7 Reposition .....................................................................................................................  50% of lift / 

launch 
9.16.8 Scheduling Deposit (credited to lift or forfeited if the vessel is late or no 

show) .............................................................................................................................  
 

750.00 
9.16.9 Dry Dockage Space (lay day) .......................................................................................   

9.16.9.1       Less than 14 days 1 to 30 days 2.90/ft/day 
9.16.9.2      Greater than 14 31 days or greater 2.651.45/ft/day 
9.16.10 On-site Storage  

9.16.10.1 Daily (first three days or portion thereof no charge) ...................................................  0.05/ft/day 
9.16.10.2 Minimum charge .........................................................................................................  15.00 

9.16.11 Vendor (must be preapproved and have $1 million liability coverage)  
9.16.11.1 Annual vendor fee ......................................................................................................  500.00/yr 
9.16.11.2 Per vessel vendor fee (one-time use) ........................................................................  250.00 

9.16.12 Utilities (includes water)  
9.16.12.1 120v single-phase 30 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater ........................  20.00/day 
9.16.12.2 208v single-phase 50 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater ........................  40.00/day 
9. 6.12.3 208v three-phase 100 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater .......................  50.00/day 

9.16.12.4 480v three-phase 100 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater .......................  70.00/day 
9.16.13 Equipment Rental  

9.16.13.1 Fork lift ........................................................................................................................  75.00/half hr 
9.16.13.2 Man lift ........................................................................................................................  75.00/half hr 
9.16.13.3 Pressure Washer ........................................................................................................  250.00/day 
9.16.13.4 Other ...........................................................................................................................  T, M & E* 

9.16.14 Environmental Tarp (ground tarp required for all bottom work) .................................  Cost + 15% 
9.16.15 Waste Disposal  

9.16.15.1 Used oil .......................................................................................................................  1.001.20/gallon 
9.16.15.2 Dumpster (5.5 yard) ....................................................................................................  110.00/tip 
9.16.15.3 Non-Hazardous liquids, including oil bilge water ........................................................  2.25/gallon 
9.16.15.4 Hazardous ..................................................................................................................  Cost + 15% 
9.16.15.5 Other, e.g., metals and wood .....................................................................................  Cost + 15% 

9.16.16 Labor  
9.16.16.1 City Employee, straight time .......................................................................................  65.00/hr 
9.16.16.2 City Employee, overtime .............................................................................................  95.00/hr 
9.16.16.3 Contract service provider (e.g., diver, lift operator, etc) .............................................  Cost + 15% 

9.16.17 Environmental Surcharge ...........................................................................................  2.5% of gross 
9.16.18 Other Fees and Services ............................................................................................  Cost + 15% 

*T, M, & E: Time (i.e., labor hours), materials, and equipment hours 
   

Section 10 Laboratory 
Appointments are required for all testing. Tests are performed on a time available basis. 
Certain tests can routinely be performed only during regular business hours, Monday 
through Thursday. If requested to be done at other times, charge is actual cost plus 
regular fee if any. 

 

14



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 5 of 6 

Section 10 
10.1 

Laboratory (continued) 

Water bacterial analysis 
10.1.1 Colilert PA Total Coliform/E. Coli (SM 9223 B) ...............................................................40.0050.00 

10.1.2 Total Coliform MF mEndo (SM 9222 B) ..........................................................................50.0060.00 

10.1.3 Fecal Coliform MF mFC (SM 9222 D) .............................................................................50.0060.00 

10.1.4 Total Coliform/E. Coli Colilert MPN LT2 (SM 9223 B) .....................................................60.0070.00 

10.1.5 Heterotrophic Count SimPlate method (SM 9215 E) .......................................................70.0075.00 

10.2 Biochemical Oxygen Demand (B.O.D.5) analysis (SM 5210 B) ......................................75.0080.00 

10.7 Miscellaneous laboratory tests ........................................................................................
Note: The following list is an example of laboratory tests that may be available. 
Alkalinity 
Total Hardness 
Free or Total Chlorine Residual 
Color 
Conductivity 
Copper 
Dissolved oxygen 
Iron 
Langelier index 
Manganese 
Nitrate 
pH 
Swimming pool/spa analysis 
Total dissolved solids 
Total suspended solids 

Actual cost + 
10% 

10.8 Yard salt ...........................................................................................................................500.00/ton 
10.9 Miscellaneous chemicals .................................................................................................Actual cost + 

10 % 

Section 12 Parks and Recreation 
(Note: For activities including micro tournaments and clinics not listed, the Parks & 
Recreation Department will establish the activity/program fee. Youth includes ages 4-18; 
Adult 19-65; Senior 65+. Activity fees can be waived for parent volunteers for coaching and 
officiating. A sponsor can contribute to activity fees to reduce cost of person or group 
participants.) 

12.1 City Organized Activities 
12.1.1    Basketball 

12.1.1.1         Adult Recreation Basketball Class A & Open Per Season Per Team .......................450.00 
12.1.1.2 
12.1.1.3 
12.1.1.4 
12.1.1.5 
12.1.1.6 

        Adult Tournament Basketball Class B & C Per Season Per Team ............................
Adult recreation Basketball B & C (Student) Per Season Per Team .........................
Adult Recreation Basketball Class A & Open  Per Person ........................................
Adult Recreation Basketball Class B & C Per Person ...............................................

        Adult Recreation Basketball (Student/Tournament) Per Person.........................

350.00 
175.00 
75.00 

55.00 75.00 
50.00 

12.1.1.67         Little Dribblers Per Season (6 weeks) Per Person .....................................................30.00 40.00 

12.1.2    Volleyball 
12.1.2.1         Adult Recreation Volleyball Per Season Per Team ...................................................200.00 
12.1.2.2 
12.1.2.3 

        Adult Tournament Volleyball Per Person ...................................................................
Student Adult Recreation Women’s Volleyball Per Person.....................................

25.00 40.00 
100.00 25.00 

12.1.3    Soccer 
12.1.3.1         Youth Soccer Per Season (6 weeks) Per Individual Person ...................................30.00 40.00 

12.1.4    Races 
12.1.4.1         Per Race Per Adult .....................................................................................................20.00 30.00 

12.1.4.2         Per Race Per Youth/Senior ........................................................................................10.00 20.00 

12.1.5   Summer Program 
12.1.5.1         Per Session (2 Week) Per Child ................................................................................30.00 40.00 

15



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Section 12 

12.1.6 
12.1.6.1 
12.1.6.2 

12.1.7 
12.1.7.1 

 
Parks and Recreation (continued) 
Softball 
 Adult Recreation Softball Per Season Per Team ............................................................  
 Adult Recreation Softball Per Season Per Person..........................................................  
Hockey 
 Adult Recreation Hockey Per Season Per Person..........................................................  

 
 
 

200.00 
25.00 

 
75.00 

12.2 City Facility  
12.2.1     Ice Rink  

12.2.1.1          Ice Time Per Session Per Adult ................................................................................   3.00 5.00 

12.2.1.2          Ice Time Per Session Per Student/Senior .................................................................  1.00 2.00 

12.2.1.3          Ice Time Ice Time Per Month Per Adult ....................................................................  30.00 45.00 

12.2.1.4 
12.2.1.5 
12.2.1.6 
12.2.1.7 

         Ice Time Per Student .................................................................................................  
  Ice Time Per Season Per Adult .................................................................................  
  Ice Time Per Season Per Student/Senior .................................................................  
 Rental Per Hour ..........................................................................................................  

10.00 15.00 
130.00 160.00 

45.00 55.00 
100.00 

12.2.1.8          Dasher board sponsor ............................................................................................              350.00 

12.2.2     Swimming Pool  
12.2.2.1         Per Session Per Adult ................................................................................................  3.00 5.00 

12.2.2.2         Per Session Per Youth/Senior....................................................................................  1.00 2.00 

12.2.2.3 
12.2.2.3.4 

        Per Session Infant - 3 years ....................................................................................  

        Per Month Per Adult ...................................................................................................  
Free 1.00 

30.00 45.00 

12.2.2.4.5         Per Month Per Youth/Senior ......................................................................................  10.00 15.00 

12.2.2.6 
12.2.2.7 

12.2.2.6.8 
12.2.2.9 

        Per Year Per Adult ....................................................................................................  

        Per Year Youth/Senior .............................................................................................  

     Masters Lessons Per Person Per Session .................................................................  
        Rental Per Hour ..........................................................................................................  

420.00 
135.00 
40.00 

100.00 
   12.2.3     Teen Center  

12.2.3.1          Racquetball Per Adult Per Session (1 hour) .............................................................  3.00 5.00 

12.2.3.2 
12.2.3.3 
12.2.3.4 
12.2.3.5 
12.2.3.6 

         Racquetball Per Student/Senior Per Session (1 hour) ..............................................  
         Racquetball Per Month Per Adult ..............................................................................  
         Racquetball Per Month Per Student ......................................................................  

         Racquetball Per Year Per Adult .............................................................................  

         Racquetball Per Year Per Student .........................................................................  

2.00 
30.00 45.00 

15.00 
420.00 
135.00 

12.2.3.3.7 
12.2.3.4.8 
12.2.3.5.9 

          Auditorium Per 4 Hour Block (Under 50 people) ......................................................  
  Auditorium Per 4 Hour Block (51 – 100 people) .......................................................  
  Auditorium Cleaning Fee ..........................................................................................  

100.00 
200.00 
25.00 

12.2.4  East Addition Recreation Building  
12.2.4.1          Per Three Hour Block ................................................................................................  100.00 

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

16



NEW BUSINESS 

17



18



19



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF KODIAK 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2017–17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 
SECTIONS 9, 10, AND 12 OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES, CHARGES, AND TARIFFS 

WHEREAS, at the February 18, 2017, regular meeting the Kodiak City Council 
approved its budget goals for FY2018, including annually reviewing and updating the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs; and 

WHEREAS, staff reviewed the Schedule of Fees and Charges, and it was 
decided to bring forth amendments to the City fees; and 

WHEREAS, the suggested fee amendments herein reflect the City’s cost to 
provide services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, 
Alaska, that Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the City’s Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs 
are hereby amended as follows: 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede previous 
resolutions amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the Schedules of Fees, Charges and 
Tariffs. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the changes to Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs herein shall be effective July 1, 2017. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is authorized to make the 
required changes to the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs. 

Section 9 Harbor 

A day is defined as a calendar day, midnight to midnight or portion thereof. 
9.1 Disposal 

9.1.1 Drums, each 55 gallon ..................................................................................................24.00 
9.1.2 Containment boom, per foot, per day, plus labor .......................................................... 0.60 
9.1.3 Sorbent pads and boom ................................................................................................cost + 10% 
9.1.4 Petroleum products and bilge waste, per gallon 

9.1.4.1 Used oil ....................................................................................................................... 1.20 
9.1.4.2 Oily bilge water, vessels under 400 gross tons .......................................................... 2.75 
9.1.4.3 Oily bilge water, vessels over 400 gross tons ............................................................ 5.00 
9.1.4.4 Testing and other necessary services ........................................................................cost + 10% 

9.2 Dry Storage 
No charge for fishing gear storage for the first three (3) days. Minimum charge is $10.00 
or per square foot fee, whichever is greater. 

9.2.1 Daily, per square foot .................................................................................................... 0.04 

Attachment A

20



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 2 of 6 

Section 9 Harbor (continued) 

9.2.2 Weekly, per square foot ................................................................................................ 0.14 
9.2.3 Monthly, per square foot ............................................................................................... 0.47 
9.2.4 Annual, per square foot ................................................................................................. 1.40 
9.2.5 Impounded vessels: cost of labor, equipment, and storage .........................................cost + 10% 

9.3 Electric Service, temporary, per day 
9.3.1 120-volt single-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ..................................18.00 
9.3.2 208-volt single-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ..................................41.50 
9.3.3 208-volt three-phase or actual kWH cost, whichever is greater ...................................47.50 
9.3.4 Electric cord rental, per day 

30-amp 120-volt twist lock cords ................................................................................ 7.50 
9.3.5 Electric plug rental, per day 

30-amp twist lock GFI to 20-amp straight blade ......................................................... 6.00 
208 single phase to 30-amp twist lock .......................................................................12.00 
208 three phase to 208 single phase .........................................................................18.00 

9.4 Tidal Grid, per foot, per tide ............................................................................................. 2.40 
9.5 Services and equipment rental 

9.5.1 Backhoe/loader, with operator, per 1/2 hour .................................................................89.00 
9.5.2 Fork Lift 

9.5.2.1 4-ton, with operator, per 1/2 hour ...............................................................................89.00 
9.5.3 Labor and Materials 

9.5.3.1 City employees, straight time, per hour ......................................................................77.00 
9.5.3.2 City employees, overtime, per hour ............................................................................107.00 
9.5.3.3 Non-City labor and miscellaneous materials ..............................................................cost + 10% 

9.5.4 Pumps 

9.5.4.1 Dewatering, electric, per day ......................................................................................36.00 
9.5.4.2 Dewatering, electric, per week ...................................................................................142.00 
9.5.4.3 Dewatering, electric, per month ..................................................................................350.00 
9.5.4.4 Dewatering gasoline, per day .....................................................................................60.00 
9.5.4.5 Sewage, vessel or RV pump-out, per use ..................................................................12.00 

9.5.5 Tanker, used oil, with operator, per hour ......................................................................154.00 
9.5.6 Vessel, with operator, per hour .....................................................................................122.00 

9.6 

9.6.1 
9.6.2 

Dockage for commercial fishing vessels at piers and docks (all other 
vessels charged per port tariff) 
 Vessels 80’ and under .............................................................................................................................

 Vessels 81’ and over ...............................................................................................................................

 Includes Dock 1, Oscar's Dock, Piers 1, 2, & 3.

 Dockage fees shall be equal to the vessel’s daily moorage rate, or the per foot rate,
whichever is greater. Vessels with exclusive moorage, and vessels which have paid
their annual daily moorage ceiling, receive the first day free when scheduled in
advance. Dockage fees do not apply to the moorage ceiling.

1.80 
2.10 

9.7 Moorage, exclusive, annual 
 Exclusive moorage means a permanently assigned slip for a specific vessel. Moorage

is calculated depending upon vessel length: Length x rate per linear foot.

 Length = length of vessel, including all fixed protuberances or length of slip, whichever
is greater.

 Vessels moored at posted restricted areas in excess of the allotted time shall incur a
moorage charge at double the daily rate, until the vessel has departed.

 20% surcharge for vessels wider than 80% of the slip water space

 50% surcharge for vessels wider than 100% of the slip water space

9.7.1 0 to 20 feet ....................................................................................................................35.55 
9.7.2 21 to 30 feet ..................................................................................................................35.55 
9.7.3 31 to 40 feet ..................................................................................................................35.55 

21



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 3 of 6 

Section 9 Harbor (continued) 
9.7.4 41 to 60 feet ..................................................................................................................48.59 
9.7.5 61 to 80 feet ..................................................................................................................72.29 
9.7.6 81 to 100 feet ................................................................................................................84.73 
9.7.7 101 to 120 feet ..............................................................................................................97.17 
9.7.8 121 to 150 feet ..............................................................................................................105.47 
9.7.9 151 feet +  .....................................................................................................................118.50 

9.8 Moorage, open/daily ........................................................................................................
 Daily moorage shall stop accruing when an amount equal to 100% of the annual

exclusive moorage has been reached.

 Vessels moored at posted restricted areas in excess of the allotted time shall incur a
moorage charge at double the daily rate, until the vessel has departed.

 Vessels under 21' receive one free day per month at designated areas only, on first-
come, first-served basis.

1/60 of the 
annual moorage 

rate 

9.9 Parking 
9.9.1 Trailers at designated long-term parking areas 

9.9.1.1 Daily ............................................................................................................................ 6.00 
9.9.1.2 Monthly .......................................................................................................................89.00 

9.9.2 Permit parking for harbor customers in designated 30-day lots adjacent 
to the harbors, per day .....................................................................................................
 Permits available to vessel slip holders and paid up transient vehicles only. Except

that permits may be sold to the general public in the 30-day lot north of Ramp 1, St.
Herman Harbor.

1.00 

9.10 Gravel ramp use at SHH and SPH 
9.10.1 Aircraft, per launch or retrieval ......................................................................................89.00 
9.10.2 Vessels under 76 feet in length, per foot, per tide ........................................................ 1.20 
9.10.3 Vessels 76 feet and longer, per foot, per tide ............................................................... 1.80 
9.10.4 Annual usage fee (must be paid in advance) ................................................................2,370.00 

9.11 Waiting list, per year ........................................................................................................30.00 
9.12 Launch ramp (exclusive slip holders and personal pleasure boats of 

persons sixty-five years of age or older are exempt) 
9.12.1 Daily ..............................................................................................................................10.00 
9.12.2 Annual ...........................................................................................................................118.50 

9.13 
9.13.1 

Administrative fees 
Slip transfer fee, per vessel .............................................................................................18.00 

9.13.2 Account sent to collections ..............................................................................................118.50 
9.14 
9.15 

Vessel sewage disposal at Pier II per day (dockage charged separately) ......................
Harbor Shower Fee, per time period ............................................................................

              89.00 
6.00 

9.16 Shipyard 
 Payment, without pre-approved credit, is 50% of the estimated yard fees and is due

before the lift; the remainder must be paid prior to launch.

 Lifts taking more than four hours will be assessed extra labor and/or machine time.

 Dry dockage is assessed the entire time the vessel remains in the yard.

9.16.1 Lift, Block, and Launch 
9.16.1.1 Vessels up to 80’ ........................................................................................................69.00/ft 
9.16.1.2 81’ to 100’ ...................................................................................................................78.00/ft 
9.16.1.3 101’ to 120’ .................................................................................................................94.00/ft 
9.16.1.4 121’ to 150’ .................................................................................................................111.00/ft 
9.16.1.5 151’ and up .................................................................................................................120.00/ft 

9.16.2 After hours surcharge .................................................................................................+ 20% / ft 
9.16.2.1 Nonstandard Lift (operator and lift) ...............................................................................1,500.00/hr 
9.16.2.2 Travel strap set up ........................................................................................................T,M&E *+ 15% 

22



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 4 of 6 

Section 9.16 Shipyard (continued) 
 

9.16.2.3 
 
Inspection Lift, includes 1 hour hang time free .............................................................  

 
75% of lift per 

launch 
9.16.2.4 Hang Time (other than wash pad).................................................................................  275.00 ea. 

addl. hour 
9.16.2.4.1  Hang Time, on wash pad ...........................................................................................  200.00/hr 
9.16.2.4.2  Hang Time, on heated wash pad ...............................................................................  300.00/hr 

9.16.5 Delay of Lift ...................................................................................................................  250.00/half 
hour 

9.16.6 Pressure Wash (and scrape if necessary) ....................................................................  T, M, & E* 
9.16.7 Reposition .....................................................................................................................  50% of lift / 

launch 
9.16.8 Scheduling Deposit (credited to lift or forfeited if the vessel is late or no 

show) .............................................................................................................................  
 

750.00 
9.16.9 Dry Dockage Space (lay day) .......................................................................................   

9.16.9.1       Less than 14 days 1 to 30 days 2.90/ft/day 
9.16.9.2      Greater than 14 31 days or greater 2.651.45/ft/day 
9.16.10 On-site Storage  

9.16.10.1 Daily (first three days or portion thereof no charge) ...................................................  0.05/ft/day 
9.16.10.2 Minimum charge .........................................................................................................  15.00 

9.16.11 Vendor (must be preapproved and have $1 million liability coverage)  
9.16.11.1 Annual vendor fee ......................................................................................................  500.00/yr 
9.16.11.2 Per vessel vendor fee (one-time use) ........................................................................  250.00 

9.16.12 Utilities (includes water)  
9.16.12.1 120v single-phase 30 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater ........................  20.00/day 
9.16.12.2 208v single-phase 50 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater ........................  40.00/day 
9. 6.12.3 208v three-phase 100 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater .......................  50.00/day 

9.16.12.4 480v three-phase 100 amp or actual kWh cost, whichever is greater .......................  70.00/day 
9.16.13 Equipment Rental  

9.16.13.1 Fork lift ........................................................................................................................  75.00/half hr 
9.16.13.2 Man lift ........................................................................................................................  75.00/half hr 
9.16.13.3 Pressure Washer ........................................................................................................  250.00/day 
9.16.13.4 Other ...........................................................................................................................  T, M & E* 

9.16.14 Environmental Tarp (ground tarp required for all bottom work) .................................  Cost + 15% 
9.16.15 Waste Disposal  

9.16.15.1 Used oil .......................................................................................................................  1.001.20/gallon 
9.16.15.2 Dumpster (5.5 yard) ....................................................................................................  110.00/tip 
9.16.15.3 Non-Hazardous liquids, including oil bilge water ........................................................  2.25/gallon 
9.16.15.4 Hazardous ..................................................................................................................  Cost + 15% 
9.16.15.5 Other, e.g., metals and wood .....................................................................................  Cost + 15% 

9.16.16 Labor  
9.16.16.1 City Employee, straight time .......................................................................................  65.00/hr 
9.16.16.2 City Employee, overtime .............................................................................................  95.00/hr 
9.16.16.3 Contract service provider (e.g., diver, lift operator, etc) .............................................  Cost + 15% 

9.16.17 Environmental Surcharge ...........................................................................................  2.5% of gross 
9.16.18 Other Fees and Services ............................................................................................  Cost + 15% 

*T, M, & E: Time (i.e., labor hours), materials, and equipment hours 
   

Section 10 Laboratory 
Appointments are required for all testing. Tests are performed on a time available basis. 
Certain tests can routinely be performed only during regular business hours, Monday 
through Thursday. If requested to be done at other times, charge is actual cost plus 
regular fee if any. 

 

23



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 5 of 6 

Section 10 
10.1 

Laboratory (continued) 

Water bacterial analysis 
10.1.1 Colilert PA Total Coliform/E. Coli (SM 9223 B) ...............................................................40.0050.00 

10.1.2 Total Coliform MF mEndo (SM 9222 B) ..........................................................................50.0060.00 

10.1.3 Fecal Coliform MF mFC (SM 9222 D) .............................................................................50.0060.00 

10.1.4 Total Coliform/E. Coli Colilert MPN LT2 (SM 9223 B) .....................................................60.0070.00 

10.1.5 Heterotrophic Count SimPlate method (SM 9215 E) .......................................................70.0075.00 

10.2 Biochemical Oxygen Demand (B.O.D.5) analysis (SM 5210 B) ......................................75.0080.00 

10.7 Miscellaneous laboratory tests ........................................................................................
Note: The following list is an example of laboratory tests that may be available. 
Alkalinity 
Total Hardness 
Free or Total Chlorine Residual 
Color 
Conductivity 
Copper 
Dissolved oxygen 
Iron 
Langelier index 
Manganese 
Nitrate 
pH 
Swimming pool/spa analysis 
Total dissolved solids 
Total suspended solids 

Actual cost + 
10% 

10.8 Yard salt ...........................................................................................................................500.00/ton 
10.9 Miscellaneous chemicals .................................................................................................Actual cost + 

10 % 

Section 12 Parks and Recreation 
(Note: For activities including micro tournaments and clinics not listed, the Parks & 
Recreation Department will establish the activity/program fee. Youth includes ages 4-18; 
Adult 19-65; Senior 65+. Activity fees can be waived for parent volunteers for coaching and 
officiating. A sponsor can contribute to activity fees to reduce cost of person or group 
participants.) 

12.1 City Organized Activities 
12.1.1    Basketball 

12.1.1.1         Adult Recreation Basketball Class A & Open Per Season Per Team .......................450.00 
12.1.1.2 
12.1.1.3 
12.1.1.4 
12.1.1.5 
12.1.1.6 

        Adult Tournament Basketball Class B & C Per Season Per Team ............................
Adult recreation Basketball B & C (Student) Per Season Per Team .........................
Adult Recreation Basketball Class A & Open  Per Person ........................................
Adult Recreation Basketball Class B & C Per Person ...............................................

        Adult Recreation Basketball (Student/Tournament) Per Person.........................

350.00 
175.00 
75.00 

55.00 75.00 
50.00 

12.1.1.67         Little Dribblers Per Season (6 weeks) Per Person .....................................................30.00 40.00 

12.1.2    Volleyball 
12.1.2.1         Adult Recreation Volleyball Per Season Per Team ...................................................200.00 
12.1.2.2 
12.1.2.3 

        Adult Tournament Volleyball Per Person ...................................................................
Student Adult Recreation Women’s Volleyball Per Person.....................................

25.00 40.00 
100.00 25.00 

12.1.3    Soccer 
12.1.3.1         Youth Soccer Per Season (6 weeks) Per Individual Person ...................................30.00 40.00 

12.1.4    Races 
12.1.4.1         Per Race Per Adult .....................................................................................................20.00 30.00 

12.1.4.2         Per Race Per Youth/Senior ........................................................................................10.00 20.00 

12.1.5   Summer Program 
12.1.5.1         Per Session (2 Week) Per Child ................................................................................30.00 40.00 

24



Resolution No. 2017–17 Deleted Language, Added Language 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Section 12 

12.1.6 
12.1.6.1 
12.1.6.2 

12.1.7 
12.1.7.1 

 
Parks and Recreation (continued) 
Softball 
 Adult Recreation Softball Per Season Per Team ............................................................  
 Adult Recreation Softball Per Season Per Person..........................................................  
Hockey 
 Adult Recreation Hockey Per Season Per Person..........................................................  

 
 
 

200.00 
25.00 

 
75.00 

12.2 City Facility  
12.2.1     Ice Rink  

12.2.1.1          Ice Time Per Session Per Adult ................................................................................   3.00 5.00 

12.2.1.2          Ice Time Per Session Per Student/Senior .................................................................  1.00 2.00 

12.2.1.3          Ice Time Ice Time Per Month Per Adult ....................................................................  30.00 45.00 

12.2.1.4 
12.2.1.5 
12.2.1.6 
12.2.1.7 

         Ice Time Per Student .................................................................................................  
  Ice Time Per Season Per Adult .................................................................................  
  Ice Time Per Season Per Student/Senior .................................................................  
 Rental Per Hour ..........................................................................................................  

10.00 15.00 
130.00 160.00 

45.00 55.00 
100.00 

12.2.1.8          Dasher board sponsor ............................................................................................              350.00 

12.2.2     Swimming Pool  
12.2.2.1         Per Session Per Adult ................................................................................................  3.00 5.00 

12.2.2.2         Per Session Per Youth/Senior....................................................................................  1.00 2.00 

12.2.2.3 
12.2.2.3.4 

        Per Session Infant - 3 years ....................................................................................  

        Per Month Per Adult ...................................................................................................  
Free 1.00 

30.00 45.00 

12.2.2.4.5         Per Month Per Youth/Senior ......................................................................................  10.00 15.00 

12.2.2.6 
12.2.2.7 

12.2.2.6.8 
12.2.2.9 

        Per Year Per Adult ....................................................................................................  

        Per Year Youth/Senior .............................................................................................  

     Masters Lessons Per Person Per Session .................................................................  
        Rental Per Hour ..........................................................................................................  

420.00 
135.00 
40.00 

100.00 
   12.2.3     Teen Center  

12.2.3.1          Racquetball Per Adult Per Session (1 hour) .............................................................  3.00 5.00 

12.2.3.2 
12.2.3.3 
12.2.3.4 
12.2.3.5 
12.2.3.6 

         Racquetball Per Student/Senior Per Session (1 hour) ..............................................  
         Racquetball Per Month Per Adult ..............................................................................  
         Racquetball Per Month Per Student ......................................................................  

         Racquetball Per Year Per Adult .............................................................................  

         Racquetball Per Year Per Student .........................................................................  

2.00 
30.00 45.00 

15.00 
420.00 
135.00 

12.2.3.3.7 
12.2.3.4.8 
12.2.3.5.9 

          Auditorium Per 4 Hour Block (Under 50 people) ......................................................  
  Auditorium Per 4 Hour Block (51 – 100 people) .......................................................  
  Auditorium Cleaning Fee ..........................................................................................  

100.00 
200.00 
25.00 

12.2.4  East Addition Recreation Building  
12.2.4.1          Per Three Hour Block ................................................................................................  100.00 

 
  CITY OF KODIAK 

 
 
 

  MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 

  

CITY CLERK   
 Adopted:  

25



26



27



(This page left intentionally blank.) 

28



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2017–18 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT TO THE AMERICAN LEGION POST 17 FOR 

USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY IN CONJUNCTION WITH FOURTH OF JULY CELE-

BRATIONS 

WHEREAS, the American Legion Post 17 is a local nonprofit organization that annually 

manages the Fourth of July parade; and 

WHEREAS, the Fourth of July parade has a proud tradition of family fun and encourages 

widespread participation and involvement from Kodiak citizens of all ages; and 

WHEREAS, the Fourth of July parade is planned for Tuesday, July 4, 2017, beginning at 

11:00 a.m. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
that a permit be issued, with the permit fee waived, to the American Legion Post 17 for use of 
City public property for the Fourth of July parade on the condition that the American Legion 
Post 17 agrees to comply with the stipulations as provided in City Code Sections 5.04.050(d) and 
5.04.060. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council hereby authorizes City street clo-

sures/traffic control for the Fourth of July celebration and town feed on Tuesday, July 4, 2017, 

from 9 a.m. until 9 p.m. for the section of Mission Road between Marine Way and Center Street.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council hereby authorizes City street clo-

sures/traffic control for the Fourth of July Parade on Tuesday, July 4, 2017, from 11:00 a.m. until 

approximately 12:30 p.m. for the St. Paul Harbor spit, Marine Way, and Center Ave. Traffic 

control is also authorized for Rezanof Drive, under the condition that the American Legion Post 

17 obtains authorization from the State Department of Transportation to close Rezanof Drive for 

the parade. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the State of Alaska Department of Transportation 

grants authority to close Rezanof Drive, the parade shall begin at the St. Paul Harbor spit; turning 

left onto Marine Way; turning right onto Rezanof Drive, turning right onto Center Avenue; 

turning right onto Marine Way; and ending at the St. Paul Harbor spit. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in the event the parade is postponed due to inclement 
weather and must be rescheduled, or if the State of Alaska Department of Transportation does 
not grant authority for the closure of Rezanof Drive, the Council authorizes necessary changes 
and additional City road closures be coordinated through the City Manager and the Kodiak 
Police Department. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

MAYOR 

Attachment A

29



Resolution No. 2017–18 

Page 2 of 2 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Adopted: 

30



Attachment B

31



32



33



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2017–19

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT TO THE KODIAK FOOTBALL LEAGUE FOR 

ITS FOOTBALL CAMP FUNDRAISER AND TO COLLECT ADMISSION FEES AND 

SELL CONCESSIONS AT BARANOF PARK 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Football League is a local nonprofit organization dedicated to 

the promotion of building positive character in young people through the sport of football; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Football League is entirely self funded and sponsors the expense 

of the football programs grades 3 through 12; and 

WHEREAS, events at the Baranof fields are in need of a snack vendor; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak High School hosts home games and events at Baranof Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Football League has requested permission to charge a fee for its 

annual football camp July 13 through July 15; and  

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Football League has requested permission to charge admission 

at football games from August 1 through October 31; and  

WHEREAS, the Kodiak Football League has requested permission to sell concessions at 

the park at certain events August 1 through October 31. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that a permit be issued, with the permit fee waived, as provided in Kodiak City Code Section 

5.04.050(d), to the Kodiak Football League for charging admissions at the Kodiak High School 

football team home games. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that permission is granted for the League to sell conces-

sions at certain events, on the condition that the League complies with the applicable stipulations 

set forth in Kodiak City Code Section 5.04.050. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that permission is granted for the the Kodiak Football 

League use of public property for its 2017 summer Football Camp on the condition that the 

Team agrees to comply with the stipulations set forth in this section and section 5.04.060 of the 

City Code. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that event sponsors shall coordinate park use with the 

Parks and Recreation Director and the City Manager. 

Attachment A

34



Resolution No. 2017–19 

Page 2 of 2 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 Adopted:  

 

35



June 10, 2017

Kodiak City Council 
710 Mill Bay Road,  
Kodiak, AK  99615 

Dear City Council Members 

The Kodiak Football League would like to request City Permits to move our Snack 

Shack Building, into our designated area, as assigned by the City Parks Director 

Mr. Corey Gronn. From August through October 2017 to sell concessions and collect 

gate admission at Baranof Park, for all High School and Youth Football Games. 

We would also like to request the use of Baranof Park Football Field for our annual 

Youth Football Skills Camp on July 13 and 14 from 6:00 to 8:00pm and on Saturday  

July 15, from 9:00am to 12:00pm followed by Hamburgers & Hotdogs at Picnic Area. 

The KFL is a Non-profit Organization that survives, by raising money through Fund 

Raiser’s, Raffles, Donations, Concession’s & Gate Sales. 

We promote Good Sportsmanship, Team Work and Teach the Sport of Football to 

Hundreds of Boys and Girls age 8 to18 and interact with all their families each year. 

Thank You for your Consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Richard Walker 

President 
Kodiak Football League 

Kodiak Football League 
P.O. Box 973 

Kodiak, Alaska  99615 
907-539-7472 

Attachment B

36



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

37



38



39



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 1 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 

ANIMAL CONTROL CONTRACT 

Between the 
CITY OF KODIAK 

and the 
KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH, 
hereinafter “KIB” and the CITY OF KODIAK, hereinafter “CITY,” in consideration of the mutual promises 
contained herein and shall be effective July 1, 2017, as specified herein. 

WHEREAS, the KIB adopted Ordinance No. 86-16-0(A) authorizing the control of animals outside 
of cities for the purpose of protecting the public health and safety; and 

WHEREAS, the KIB wishes and is authorized to contract for animal control service by Kodiak 
Island Borough Subsection 6.04.200(C); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY is willing to provide said services to the KIB. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows: 

Section 1. DEFINITIONS. 

In this contract: 

A. “KIB” means the Kodiak Island Borough. 
B. “Animal Code” means Chapter 6.04 of the Kodiak Island Borough Code and any 

amendments thereto. 
C. “Animal Shelter” means the City of Kodiak Animal Shelter. 
D. “Chief Animal Control Officer” means the Kodiak Island Borough Manager or his/her 

designee. 
E. “Complaint” means a request to the CITY for service or services. 
F. “CITY” means City of Kodiak, its agents and employees. 

Section 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

The CITY shall provide non-law enforcement personnel and resources to enforce KIB animal control and 
related codes and ordinances, supplies, equipment, and a facility to perform those animal control 
services set forth in this contract. 

Attachment A

40



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 2 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 
 

Section 3. ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLAINT RESPONSE; ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER(S). 
 

A. The CITY shall employ Community Service Officer(s)/Animal Control Officer(s) who shall 
respond to complaints in the Kodiak Island Borough in the following priority: (1) Kodiak 
Police Department and Alaska Troopers emergency calls; (2) quarantine violations; (3) dog 
bites or vicious dogs; (4) injured animals; (5) cruelty to animals; (6) trapped animals; (7) 
loose animals; (8) animal noise complaints; and (9) patrol of neighborhoods experiencing 
animal nuisance problems. 

B. The CSO/ACO will patrol and respond to complaints originating within the communities of 
Monashka Bay, Spruce Cape, Anton Larsen, Womans Bay, Chiniak, and Pasagshak.  The 
CSO/ACO will not patrol or respond to areas off the road system. 

C. CSO/ACO(s) shall issue citations for subject violations of the Animal Code, participate in the 
prosecution of such citations, and investigate and prepare reports regarding serious code 
violations. CSO/ACO(s) shall impound stray dogs and other animals which are subject to 
impoundment; when necessary, bring animals into the Animal Shelter under protective 
custody; enforce the quarantine of animals that have bitten persons; inspect, for sanitary 
conditions, premises where animals are kept; administer first aid to animals; participate in 
administrative hearings at the request of the Chief Animal Control Officer; and generally 
assist, in a professional manner, citizens and other law enforcement agencies who have 
requested help with animal problems. 

D. The CITY shall provide around-the-clock, seven-days-per-week telephone answering service 
to accept and record animal complaint and information calls from the public. 

E. The CITY shall use its best efforts to respond in a timely manner to all complaint calls of an 
emergency nature (e.g., vicious animals, cruelty to animals, trapped animals) received.  A 
timely response is one in which the CSO/ACO arrives not more than seventy-five (75) 
minutes after the request for service has been made. 

 Patrol and non-emergency CSO/ACO response service shall be made available to the public 
on a regular basis  

 
 
Section 4. CARE, REDEMPTION, ADOPTION, AND DEPOSITION OF ANIMALS. 
 
Care, redemption, adoption, and deposition of animals and hours of Animal Shelter operation shall 
coincide with those established by the CITY, as a municipal government, for Animal Control operations 
presently administered within the city limits. The CITY will provide the facility and furnishings, patrol 
vehicles, operating supplies, and insurance. 
 
 
Section 5. INSURANCE. 
 

A. The CITY shall provide insurance coverage in the following amounts: 
 
a. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by AS 23.30.045 or any other applicable 

statutes or regulations. 
b. General Liability insurance with a minimum of $10,250,000 per occurrence and/or aggregate 

combined single limit, personal injury, bodily injury, and property damage. 

41



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 3 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 
 

c. Vehicle Liability insurance including applicable uninsured/underinsured coverage, with limits 
of liability of not less than a minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit 
bodily injury and property damage. 

 
B. The following shall be Additional Insureds: The KIB, including all elected and appointed 

officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities and their 
board members, employees and volunteers. This coverage shall be primarily to the KIB, and 
not contributing with any other insurance or similar protection available to the KIB, whether 
other available coverage be primary, contributing, or excess. 

 
C. To the extent allowed by law and subject to appropriation, KIB and City each hereby release 

and agree to defend, indemnify, and hold the other party, elected and appointed officials, 
employees, contractors, and volunteers harmless from and against all claims, demands, 
causes of action, suits, damages, liabilities, losses, and expenses including court costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees, and all loss, damage, injury, or death resulting to the 
indemnifying party's property, subcontractors, or personnel, arising out of or in connection 
with the services, or the performance of this agreement, whether or not such loss, damage, 
injury, or death is alleged to be due to the act, omission, negligence (whether contributory, 
joint, or sole) fault or strict liability of the indemnified party. 

  
In no event shall either party be liable to the other for indirect, special, incidental or 
consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profits, loss of use of assets or 
loss of product or facilities downtime. 

 
D. A sixty (60) day Notice of Cancellation or Change, Non-Renewal, Reduction and/or Materials 

Change shall be sent to the KIB at the address indicated in Section 11 (Notices) of this 
agreement. 

 
E. The CITY shall provide evidence of coverage, with endorsements, to the KIB at the time that 

the contract is executed, as listed below: 
 

• Certificate of Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
• Certificate of General Liability Insurance 
• Certificate of Vehicle Liability Insurance 

 
F. If any of the above coverage is amended or expires during the term of the contract, the CITY 

shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the KIB at least ten (10) days prior to the 
expiration date. 

 
The CITY shall not commence operations under this agreement until it has obtained the 
coverage required under the terms of this agreement. All coverage shall be with insurance 
carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Alaska. All coverage shall be 
with carriers acceptable to the KIB. 

 
If the CITY fails to comply with the insurance requirements of this agreement, the KIB may 
terminate the agreement on ten (10) days written notice. The CITY covenants to maintain all 

42



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 4 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 
 

insurance policies required in this agreement for the period of time in which a person may 
commence a civil action as prescribed by the applicable statute of limitations. 

 
The coverage required by this agreement shall cover all claims arising in connection with the 
CITY activity authorized under this agreement, whether or not asserted during the term of 
this agreement and even though judicial proceedings may not be commenced until after this 
agreement expires. 

 
 
Section 6. LICENSING. 
 

A. The CITY shall administer the licensing of individual dogs as stated in the Animal Code and in 
the KIB fee schedule. 

 
B. The CITY shall post a public notice in the Animal Shelter lobby, as well as provide periodic 

newspaper and public service announcements, stating that all dogs over three months of 
age must be licensed. 

 
C. All tags, certificates, and other supplies necessary for licensing will be provided by the CITY. 

 
 
Section 7. CUSTOMER SERVICE. 
 
 The CITY will publish hours for public access to recover or adopt animals five days per week, and have 
available emergency response capability to access the Animal Shelter on a twenty-four (24) hour per day 
basis. 
 
 
Section 8. FEE COLLECTION. 
 

A. The CITY shall collect any licensing fees authorized by the Animal Code and periodically 
transfer the amount collected to the KIB. 

 
B. Kodiak Island Borough may conduct a periodic audit or review of the CITY’s fee collection 

process. 
 
 
Section 9. CONTRACT TERM. 
 
This contract is effective from the date of execution through June 30, 2018, and the parties may review 
and renegotiate terms and costs annually. 
 
 
Section 10. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT. 
 

A. The KIB Community Development Department shall administer this contract on behalf of 
KIB. 

43



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 5 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 
 

 
B. The Kodiak City Manager shall administer this contract on behalf of the CITY. 

 
 
Section 11. NOTICES. 
 
Any notice required pertaining to the subject of this contract shall be personally delivered or mailed by 
prepaid first class registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses: 
 

KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH   CITY OF KODIAK 
Borough Manager    City Manager 
710 Mill Bay Road #125    710 Mill Bay Road #114 
Kodiak, AK 99615    Kodiak, AK 99615 

 
 
Section 12. INSPECTION AND RETENTION OF RECORDS. 
 
The CITY shall maintain an accounting and documentation of expenditures and shall allow KIB to 
examine such records as well as any of the CITY’s records with respect to animal control matters at all 
times during normal business hours and as often as KIB may deem necessary, including the City’s 
approved records retention period after the termination of this contract. The CITY shall permit KIB to 
audit, examine, and make copies, and/or excerpts or transcripts from such records and to audit all 
invoices, materials, payrolls, records or personnel, and other data relating to any matter covered by this 
contract. The CITY shall maintain all of its records pertaining to this contract for a period of not less than 
two years after termination of this contract. 
 
 
Section 13. BUDGET AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES. 
 

A. Upon condition of satisfactory performance in all respects by the CITY and subject to the 
remainder of this section, KIB shall pay the CITY a sum of $114,015.00 per year. The 
compensation shall be paid in advance in semi-annual installments, July 1 and January 1. 

B. The CITY and KIB shall separately assume any legal costs associated with animal control 
enforcement within their respective areas of jurisdiction. 

C. The KIB shall be responsible for direct costs associated with the transportation, lodging, 
feeding, and veterinarian services for animals outside the CITY that cannot be transported 
by the Animal Control Officer and/or are not able to be lodged at the Kodiak Animal Shelter, 
provided prior written approval has been obtained from KIB. 

 
 
Section 14. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION. 
 
This Agreement will become effective July 1, 2017, and continue in force until June 30, 2018, except 
that, in addition to the termination provisions in Section 6.F. (Insurance), it may be terminated by either 
party upon thirty (30) days written notification to the other. The City will refund any prepaid amount 
within ten days of termination, on a pro-rata basis. This Agreement may be amended by written 
agreement of the parties. 

44



FY2018 City-Borough Animal Control Contract Page 6 of 6 
City Record No. 232399 
 

 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract on the date and at the place 
shown below: 
 

CITY OF KODIAK     KODIAK ISLAND BOROUGH 
 
 
 
________________________   ___________________________ 
Mike Tvenge, City Manager   Michael Powers, Borough Manager 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
Debra Marlar, MMC, City Clerk   Nova Javier, MMC, Borough Clerk 

45



K
O

D
IA

K
 A

N
IM

A
L 

SH
EL

TE
R

U
TI

LI
ZA

TI
O

N
 S

TA
TS

FY
2

0
1

6
 A

N
D

 Y
TD

 (
3

/3
1

) 
2

0
1

7

IM
P

O
U

N
D

S

2
0

1
6

 B
o

ro
u

gh
 Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

2
0

1
6

 C
it

y 
Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

U
n

kn
o

w
n

 2
0

1
6

To
ta

l I
m

p
o

u
n

d
s 

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

 B
o

ro
u

gh
 Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

2
0

1
7

 C
it

y 
Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

To
ta

l I
m

p
o

u
n

d
s 

YT
D

 2
0

1
7

D
o

g
8

1
6

4
2

1
4

7
5

4
3

8
9

2

C
at

3
6

2
3

7
5

9
5

2
1

2
6

C
h

ic
ke

n
1

1

R
ab

b
it

1
1

D
u

ck
s

4
4

P
ig

1
1

TO
TA

L
1

2
4

8
7

9
2

1
3

5
9

5
9

1
1

8

R
EC

LA
IM

S
2

0
1

6
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 Im
p

o
u

n
d

s
2

0
1

6
 C

it
y 

Im
p

o
u

n
d

s
U

n
kn

o
w

n
 2

0
1

6
To

ta
l R

ec
la

im
ed

 2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

 B
o

ro
u

gh
 Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

2
0

1
7

 C
it

y 
Im

p
o

u
n

d
s

To
ta

l R
ec

la
im

ed
 Y

TD
 2

0
1

7

D
o

g
6

2
5

2
1

1
4

5
9

3
2

9
1

C
at

6
2

8
5

7
1

2

C
h

ic
ke

n

R
ab

b
it

D
u

ck
s

4
4

P
ig

1
1

TO
TA

L
7

3
5

4
1

2
7

6
4

3
9

1
0

3

SU
R

R
EN

D
ER

ED
2

0
1

6
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 S
u

rr
en

d
er

s
2

0
1

6
 C

it
y 

Im
p

o
u

n
d

s
U

n
kn

o
w

n
 2

0
1

6
To

ta
l S

u
rr

en
d

er
s 

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

 B
o

ro
u

gh
 S

u
rr

en
d

er
s

2
0

1
7

 C
it

y 
Su

rr
en

d
er

s
To

ta
l S

u
rr

en
d

er
s 

YT
D

 2
0

1
7

D
o

g
n

o
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
3

0
1

2
4

2

C
at

s
n

o
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
5

9
1

4

R
ab

b
it

n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

2
2

Fe
rr

et
s

n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

B
ir

d
s

n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

R
o

d
en

ts
n

o
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
2

3
5

O
th

er
n

o
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
2

2

n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

1
1

0
3

7
2

8
6

5

A
D

O
P

TI
O

N
S

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
6

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

YT
D

 2
0

1
7

2
3

9
1

0
7

EU
TH

A
N

A
SI

A

2
0

1
6

YT
D

 2
0

1
7

2
1

8

Attachment B

46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

47



48



49



Attachment A

50



51



Attachment B

52



53



54



55



Attachment A

56



57



58



Attachment B

59



60



61



62



B
id

 T
a

b
W

W
T

P
 C

en
tr

if
u

g
e 

In
st

a
ll

a
ti

o
n

 P
N

 1
7

-0
3

/7
5

1
9

P
N

1
7

-0
3

W
ed

n
es

d
a
y,

 J
u

n
e 

0
7
, 
2
0
1
7

B
id

 D
a
te

:

B
id

 

It
em

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o
n

Q
u

a
n

ti
ty

U
n

it
s

B
er

in
g
 I

n
d
u

st
ri

a
l 

C
o
n

tr
a
ct

o
rs

 I
n

c

E
n

g
in

ee
rs

 E
st

im
a
te

1
In

st
al

l 
ce

n
tr

if
u
g
e,

 s
ew

ag
e 

sl
u
d

g
e 

p
u
m

p
s,

 r
ep

la
ce

 

p
u
m

p
s,

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 p

ip
in

g
 

an
d

 e
le

ct
ri

ca
l 

u
p

g
ra

d
es

1
$

3
9

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
3

4
1

,5
5

0
.0

0
$

3
9

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

L
u
m

p
 

S
u
m

$
3

4
1

,5
5

0
.0

0

 G
ra

n
d
 T

o
ta

l
$
3
9
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
3
4
1
,5

5
0
.0

0

P
a

g
e 

1
 o

f 
1

W
W

T
P

 C
en

tr
if

u
g

e 
In

st
a

ll
a

ti
o

n
 P

N
 1

7
-0

3
/7

5
1

9
P

N
1

7
-0

3

Attachment A

63



64



65



66



Bettinger Upper Seismic Study 
Golder Associates Inc. 

2121 Abbott Road, Suite 100  
Anchorage, AK  99507 USA  

Tel:  (907) 344-6001  Fax:  (907) 344-6011  www.golder.com 

Golder Associates: Operations in Africa, Asia, Australasia, Europe, North America and South America 

Golder, Golder Associates and the GA globe design are trademarks of Golder Associates Corporation 

June 8, 2017 P1777694 

Mr. Mark Kozak 
City of Kodiak 
2410 Mill Bay Road 
Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

RE: PROPOSAL TO PERFORM A SEISMIC STUDY FOR THE BETTINGER UPPER RESERVOIR 
DAM IN KODIAK, ALASKA 

Dear Mark: 

Golder Associates Inc. (Golder) is pleased to present to the City of Kodiak this proposal to perform a seismic 
stability analysis of the Bettinger Upper Reservoir Dam (NID ID#AK00022).  The Alaska Department of 
Natural Resources Dam Safety and Construction Unit (ADNR Dam Safety) requested a current seismic 
stability analysis for Bettinger Upper Reservoir Dam as a part of the conditional approval of the periodic 
safety inspections (PSI) of the City of Kodiak Dams. This proposal was revised from our original proposal, 
dated April 6, 2017, to incorporate comments received from ADNR Dam Safety on May 25, 2017. 

ADNR Dam Safety also requested consideration of a new inundation study dependent on results of the 
stability analysis.  The inundation study is not included in the scope of this proposal, but a rough cost for 
performing those services, if necessary, is estimates to be approximately $25,000 to $30,000. 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
The Bettinger Upper Reservoir Dam was constructed in 1968 as a rockfill dam with an internal clay core 
that is founded on weathered bedrock and glacial till.  In 1971, the dam was modified to reduce leakage by 
adding a vertical sheet pile wall along the centerline and grouting the upstream side of the wall. The 
boundaries of the sheet pile wall are not shown on the as-built drawings and are not well known. 

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Our scope of service will include project management, a geotechnical investigation, geotechnical laboratory 
testing, and analysis and reporting. To perform the seismic stability analysis of the dam, a geotechnical 
investigation is necessary to collect additional data, and will include the following: 

 Determining dam material properties (i.e., rockfill and clay core) and bedrock depth by 
performing a geotechnical investigation, which will include drilling boreholes, collecting soil 
samples, and performing laboratory testing.  

 Estimating the phreatic surface using groundwater data collected from piezometer 
standpipes installed in the boreholes during the geotechnical investigation.  

 The sheet pile wall limits and installed piezometer standpipes will be surveyed by a local 
survey company. 

Details on the various project tasks are outlined in the sections below. 

2.1 Project Management and Permits 
Prior to performing the geotechnical investigation, Golder will prepare a cover letter of intent and an 
“Application for Certificate of Approval to Construct, Modify, Repair, Remove or Abandon a Dam” for ADNR 

Attachment A

67



Mark Kozak June 8, 2017 
City of Kodiak 2 P1777694 

Bettinger Upper Seismic Study 

Dam Safety’s review and approval.  Golder will also prepare a site specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) 
and coordinate underground utility locates prior to the field work.   

2.2 Geotechnical Investigation and Laboratory Testing 
For this project, four borehole locations will be drilled at the dam at the proposed locations shown in Figure 
1, and include two boreholes located at the crest on opposite sides of the sheet pile wall, one borehole 
located mid-slope on the access road, and one borehole located at the toe of the dam embankment.  
Because boulders may be encountered during drilling, the drilling for the boreholes will be terminated at 
least 10 feet into the bedrock either using air-rotary or core methods to confirm bedrock is reached.  From 
the dam as-built plan and profile we anticipate the boreholes will be drilled to the following depths below 
the ground surface: 70 feet for the two boreholes at the crest, 50 feet for the mid-slope borehole, and 30 
feet for the borehole at the toe. 

The boreholes will be advanced using a truck-mounted drill rig using air-rotary drilling method to advance 
a 4-inch steel casing.  The drilling equipment is owned and operated by Discovery Drilling Inc. (Discovery), 
who will be subcontracted through Golder.  A three-inch outside diameter (LPT) split-spoon sampling 
equipment will generally be used to collect soil samples ahead of the casing samples, and blow counts for 
driving the sample spoon using a 340-pound hammer will be recorded.  The 340-pound hammer will have 
a recent hammer energy calibration to determine the correction to adjust the field recorded blow counts to 
a standard penetration test (SPT) N-Value.  Coring will be performed using an NQ or HQ sized core barrel 
through the bedrock. 

Samples will be collected at continuous intervals in the clay core, fine fill materials, and within the native 
soils overlying bedrock.  To collect undisturbed soil samples of the clay core, selected sample intervals will 
be collected using a Shelby tube sampler.  Selected Shelby Tube samples will be retained in the event that 
additional testing for permeability is needed.  Rock core will be stored in core boxes, photographed, and 
classified in the field based on International Society of Rock Mechanics (ISRM) standards for weathering, 
rock strength, core recovery, Rock Quality Designation (RQD), fracture index, and description of 
discontinuities. 

A Golder field geologist / engineer will be on-site to direct the work, log the boreholes, and classify the soil 
based on the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS).  After field classification of the recovered soil 
samples by our geologist/engineer, representative portions of the soil samples will be retained for laboratory 
testing.  Retained soil samples from the split-spoon sampler will be double sealed in polyethylene bags to 
reduce soil moisture loss during storage and shipment. Shelby tube samples will be sealed with caps and 
tape, and shipped upright in their orientation when collected. 

The boreholes will be completed after drilling by installing piezometer standpipes for manually measuring 
the groundwater levels using a water level indicator.  The standpipes will consist of a 2-inch Schedule PVC 
casing with a 5-foot machine-slotted screen at the bottom of the standpipe.  The screen section of the 
standpipe will be backfilled with silica sand to one foot above the screen, with the remainder of the annulus 
backfilled with a neat cement grout up to 5 feet below the ground surface.  The grout will consist Type I 
Portland Cement with a preferred water to cement ratio of 0.46 by weight (i.e., 5.2 gallons of water per 94 
pound sack of cement) and a maximum water to cement ratio of 0.53 (i.e., 6 gallons of water per 94 pound 
sack).  Gravel will be used to backfill the top 5 feet, and a flush-mount well cover set in concrete will be 
installed at the surface to protect the PVC casing of the standpipe. 

A second field trip to collect groundwater levels from the installed piezometers will be performed. 

2.3 Geotechnical Laboratory Testing 
Selected soil samples will be tested in our Anchorage laboratory for soil index properties including moisture 
content, grain size distribution, Atterberg limits, specific gravity, and hydrometer. We propose to perform 
three-point consolidated undrained triaxial testing on the clay core materials to evaluate their strength 
properties. 

68



Mark Kozak June 8, 2017 
City of Kodiak 3 P1777694 

Bettinger Upper Seismic Study 

2.4 Analysis and Report 
A dam section model with phreatic groundwater surface will be developed for stability analyses based on 
available as-built drawings, survey and groundwater elevations, and material properties determined from 
the geotechnical investigation. The stability analysis results will be described in a report that will include 
details on input parameters for the analyses and references used, and a summary of the geotechnical 
investigation and laboratory testing. The report will include the following: 

 Defining the site seismic parameters using data from the geotechnical investigation and 
USGS hazard mapping.  These parameters will include the seismic coefficients, return 
period, and levels of potential ground motions (e.g. duration, frequency, amplitude and 
predominant period of ground vibrations, and peak ground accelerations). 

 Verifying the dam is not subject to liquefaction based on the local geology, historical record, 
and simplified methods using sampler blow counts from the geotechnical investigation 
adjusted to SPT N-values.  The liquefaction analysis will evaluate earthquake induced pore 
pressures in the materials susceptible to liquefaction. 

 Performing a static stability analysis and pseudo-static seismic stability analysis using 
selected seismic coefficients, and verifying the calculated factor of safety (FoS) is greater 
than 1.0.  If the FoS is less than required, we will estimate deformations using a simplified 
seismic slope displacement procedure by the 2007 Bray and Travasarou method.  
However, a numerical analysis model is the state of the practice for estimating seismic 
deformations in the event a pseudo-static stability FoS is less than one.  Numerical 
modeling costs are not included in this proposal.  As a contingency for seismic numerical 
modeling, we will retain Shelby tube samples of the clay core materials, if available, for 
additional cyclic testing as necessary. 

The seismic stability analysis will take the following into account: 

 Two levels of design earthquakes will be selected and analyzed: the Operating Basis 
Earthquake (OBE) and the Maximum Design Earthquake (MDE).  The OBE will be 
defined based on probabilistic evaluation of the frequency of regional earthquakes 
using USGS data and the useful life span of the facility.  The MDE will also be selected 
using a probabilistic evaluation of the USGS return plots; the dam type, size, and 
geometry; and the reservoir capacity. 

 The seismic analysis will include an analysis of the dynamic response of the dam to 
inertial forces and potential reductions or loss of strength and stiffness in the foundation 
and dam materials as a function of the design ground motions, and an analysis to verify 
that the dam reservoir embankments will adequately resist slides during the design 
earthquakes. 

At this time, the analysis and cost estimate does not include an inundation study, as the necessity of one 
is dependent on the results of the seismic analysis. 

3.0 COST AND SCHEDULE 
The estimated cost for the scope of services is approximately $75,000, and will be billed on a time and 
materials, not to exceed basis, using our attached 2017 rate schedule.  The breakdown of the cost estimate 
is summarized in the attached spreadsheet.   

The starting date is dependent on when we receive authorization to proceed (currently scheduled for fiscal 
year 2018) and subcontractor availability.  The above cost estimate assumes we won’t be able to share the 
mobilization and that the rig’s hammer will be calibrated prior to arriving on-site.  Additional charges or 
credits, as detailed in the attached cost estimate, may be incurred if these assumptions are not met.  We 
will attempt to schedule the work to coincide with other work in Kodiak to reduce subcontractor mobilization 
cost.  We expect to submit our draft report within eight weeks of completion of fieldwork, and the final report 
will be submitted within one week after receiving all draft review comments. 

69



70



G
O

N
E

G
O

N
E

PR
ES

EN
T,

U
N

KN
O

W
N

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

O
R

EH
O

LE
 A

N
D

 N
EW

 P
IE

ZO
M

ET
ER

 S
TA

N
D

PI
PE

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

01 in

P1
77

76
94

C
O

N
TR

O
L

FI
G

U
R

E 1
A

20
17

-0
3-

29

AP
G

- C
AV

SL
A

KO
D

IA
K 

BE
TT

IN
G

ER
 D

AM

KO
D

IA
K,

 A
LA

SK
A

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
KO

D
IA

K

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
O

R
E

H
O

L
E

 / 
P

IE
Z

O
M

E
T

E
R

 S
T

A
N

D
P

IP
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

TI
TL

E

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

O
.

R
EV

.

PR
O

JE
C

T
C

LI
EN

T

IF THIS MEASUREMENT DOES NOT MATCH WHAT IS SHOWN, THE SHEET SIZE HAS BEEN MODIFIED FROM: ANSI A

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

PR
EP

AR
ED

D
ES

IG
N

ED

R
EV

IE
W

ED

AP
PR

O
VE

D

YY
YY

-M
M

-D
D

La
st

 E
di

te
d 

By
: a

ga
rri

gu
s 

 D
at

e:
  2

01
7-

03
-2

9 
 T

im
e:

4:
34

:3
0 

PM
  |

  P
rin

te
d 

By
: A

G
ar

rig
us

   
D

at
e:

 2
01

7-
04

-0
6 

 T
im

e:
11

:1
4:

56
 A

M
Pa

th
: \

\A
nc

ho
ra

ge
\P

ub
lic

\G
eo

m
at

ic
s\

C
ity

 o
f K

od
ia

k\
Ko

di
ak

\9
9_

PR
O

JE
C

TS
\P

17
77

69
4,

 C
ity

 o
f K

od
ia

k 
Be

tti
ng

er
 D

am
\0

00
0_

Pr
op

os
al

\0
2_

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

\D
W

G
\  

|  
Fi

le
 N

am
e:

 P
17

77
69

4.
dw

g

0

FE
ET

50
10

0

1'
' =

 1
00

'

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
(S

)

BA
SE

 M
AP

 F
R

O
M

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

N
, L

AK
E 

BE
TT

IN
G

ER
C

O
M

PL
EX

 D
AM

 A
K2

2,
 B

Y 
IN

TE
R

N
AT

IO
N

AL
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y,
 IN

C
,

TO
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

KO
D

IA
K.

AP
PR

O
XI

M
AT

E

71



Ju
ne

 2
01

7
P

17
77

69
4

C
os

t E
st

im
at

e
 P

ag
e 

1 
of

 1
 

Ta
sk

 &
 S

ub
ta

sk
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
N

am
e,

 R
at

e 
&

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 H

ou
rs

G
O

LD
ER

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S

Sr Practice
Leader

Practice
Leader

Senior 
Consultant

Sr. 
Engr/Geo

Sr. Project 
Engr/Geo

Project 
Engineer

Staff 
Engineer

Engr/Geo

Drafter / 
Engr. Tech

Senior 
Admin 

La
bo

r
To

ta
l G

ol
de

r 
La

bo
r &

 
E

xp
en

se
N

o.
U

ni
t R

at
e

S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
or

D
ire

ct
 C

os
t

M
ar

ku
p

To
ta

l
S

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
o

r or
D

ire
ct

 C
os

t

TA
SK

 T
O

TA
L

B
ill

in
g 

Le
ve

l
8

7
6

5
4

3
2

1
D

3
B

3
B

ill
in

g 
R

at
e

$2
50

$2
30

$1
90

$1
65

$1
40

$1
20

$1
00

$9
0

$1
05

$9
0

15
%

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t /

 C
oo

rd
. W

ith
 A

D
N

R
 D

am
 S

af
et

y
1

12
1

1,
96

0
$ 

   
 

13
7

$ 
   

   
   

2,
09

7
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
09

7
$ 

   
   

   
A

D
N

R
 D

am
 S

af
et

y 
P

er
m

it 
Fe

e 
to

 In
st

al
l I

ns
tru

m
en

ta
tio

n 
(2

%
 o

f T
as

k 
2 

or
 $

50
0 

m
in

)
92

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

13
8

$ 
   

1,
05

8
$ 

   
   

   
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

P
la

n
1

2
47

0
$ 

   
   

 
33

$ 
   

   
   

  
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
TA

SK
 T

O
TA

L
0

0
2

0
14

0
0

0
0

1
2,

43
0

$ 
   

 
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
2,

60
0

$ 
   

   
  

92
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

8
$ 

   
1,

05
8

$ 
   

   
   

3,
65

8
$ 

   
   

   

Fi
el

d 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n

4
48

7,
48

0
$ 

   
 

52
4

$ 
   

   
   

8,
00

4
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
00

4
$ 

   
   

   
A

dd
iti

on
al

 tr
ip

 to
 c

ol
le

ct
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 d

at
a

1
8

1,
31

0
$ 

   
 

92
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
40

2
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
40

2
$ 

   
   

   
A

irf
ar

e
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
65

0
$ 

   
   

 
1,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

19
5

$ 
   

1,
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
1,

49
5

$ 
   

   
   

C
ar

 R
en

ta
l

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

12
5

$ 
   

   
 

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
75

$ 
   

  
57

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

57
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

R
oo

m
 a

nd
 B

oa
rd

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

15
0

$ 
   

   
 

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
90

$ 
   

  
69

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

69
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

20
$ 

   
   

   
80

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
$ 

   
  

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

D
ril

lin
g 

S
ub

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 C

os
ts

M
ob

iliz
at

io
n/

D
em

ob
iliz

at
io

n 
fro

m
 A

nc
ho

ra
ge

1
6,

50
0

$ 
   

 
6,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

97
5

$ 
   

7,
47

5
$ 

   
   

   
7,

47
5

$ 
   

   
   

C
re

di
t f

or
 S

ha
re

d 
M

ob
iliz

at
io

n/
D

em
ob

iliz
at

io
n 

w
ith

 c
re

w
 a

nd
 d

ril
l i

n 
K

od
ia

k
0

(3
,5

00
)

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
H

am
m

er
 E

ne
rg

y 
C

al
ib

ra
tio

n 
(m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r s

ha
re

d 
m

ob
iliz

at
io

n)
0

1,
50

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

ai
ly

 R
at

e 
(in

cl
ud

es
 e

xp
en

se
s)

4
4,

30
0

$ 
   

 
17

,2
00

$ 
   

   
 

2,
58

0
$ 

19
,7

80
$ 

   
   

 
19

,7
80

$ 
   

   
 

2-
in

ch
 P

V
C

 fo
r P

ie
zo

m
et

er
 S

ta
nd

pi
pe

18
0

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

5
$ 

   
1,

03
5

$ 
   

   
   

1,
03

5
$ 

   
   

   
S

an
d 

an
d 

G
ro

ut
 (p

er
 b

ag
)

90
25

$ 
   

   
   

2,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
33

8
$ 

   
2,

58
8

$ 
   

   
   

2,
58

8
$ 

   
   

   
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

C
as

in
g

4
12

5
$ 

   
   

 
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

75
$ 

   
  

57
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
57

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
S

ur
ve

y 
of

 In
st

al
le

d 
P

ie
zo

m
et

er
 S

ta
nd

pi
pe

s 
an

d 
S

he
et

 P
ile

 C
ut

of
f W

al
l

1
2,

00
0

$ 
   

 
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

30
0

$ 
   

2,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
2,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

TA
SK

 T
O

TA
L

0
0

5
0

56
0

0
0

0
0

8,
79

0
$ 

   
 

61
5

$ 
   

   
   

9,
40

5
$ 

   
   

  
31

,8
30

$ 
   

   
 

4,
77

5
$ 

36
,6

05
$ 

   
   

 
46

,0
10

$ 
   

   
 

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 C

os
ts

N
um

be
r

R
at

e
To

ta
l

M
oi

st
ur

e 
C

on
te

nt
40

20
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

S
ie

ve
 A

na
ly

si
s

4
16

0
$ 

   
   

   
64

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
64

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
H

yd
ro

m
et

er
4

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

A
tte

rb
er

g 
Li

m
its

1
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
S

pe
ci

fic
 g

ra
vi

ty
1

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Tr
ia

xi
al

, C
U

 (A
S

TM
 D

47
67

)
3

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
TA

SK
 T

O
TA

L
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
53

$ 
   

   
   

1,
25

5
$ 

   
   

4,
24

0
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
24

0
$ 

   
   

   

A
na

ly
si

s
12

40
7,

88
0

$ 
   

 
55

2
$ 

   
   

   
8,

43
2

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

43
2

$ 
   

   
   

P
re

pa
re

 D
ra

ft 
R

ep
or

t
12

40
8

1
8,

81
0

$ 
   

 
61

7
$ 

   
   

   
9,

42
7

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

42
7

$ 
   

   
   

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t

8
8

1
2

2,
92

5
$ 

   
 

20
5

$ 
   

   
   

3,
13

0
$ 

   
   

  
1

50
$ 

   
   

   
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8
$ 

   
   

 
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
18

7
$ 

   
   

   
TA

SK
 T

O
TA

L
0

0
32

0
88

0
0

0
9

3
19

,6
15

$ 
  

1,
37

3
$ 

   
   

20
,9

88
$ 

   
   

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
8

$ 
   

   
 

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
21

,0
46

$ 
   

   
 

G
R

AN
D

 T
O

TA
L 

 =
 

74
,9

54
$ 

   
   

 

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 P
er

m
its

2.
 G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l I

nv
es

tig
at

io
n

3.
 A

na
ly

si
s 

an
d 

R
ep

or
t

C
O

ST
 E

ST
IM

A
TE

 F
O

R
 

 B
et

tin
ge

r U
pp

er
 D

am
 S

ei
sm

ic
 S

tu
dy

, K
od

ia
k,

 A
K

G
ol

de
r C

os
ts

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r o
r D

ire
ct

 C
os

ts

E
st

im
at

ed
M

is
c.

E
xp

en
se

s
(E

st
im

at
ed

as
 7

%
 o

f
la

bo
r)

3.
 G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l L

ab
or

at
or

y 
Te

st
in

g

72



 

GOLDER ASSOCIATES INC.  
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 
PROFESSIONAL RATE SCHEDULE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2017 

 

 
 
2017 Rate Schedule NOSF  

Invoices from Golder Associates Inc. include all labor charges, other direct costs, and costs associated with 
in-house services.  Charges include only those services directly attributable to the execution of the work.  
Time spent when traveling in the interest of the work will be charged in accordance with the hourly rates.  
Rates for Professional services related to expert testimony, including time spent in depositions and the 
preparation and presentations of testimony, are available upon request. 

Labor charges are based upon standard hourly billing rates for each category of staff.  The billing rates 
include costs for salary, payroll taxes, insurance associated with employment, benefits (including holiday, 
sick leave, and vacation), administrative overheads, and profit.  Rates by labor category are as follows: 

 
Billing 
Level 

Personnel 
Category 

Hourly Rate 
(U.S.$) 

C8 Sr.Practice/Program Leader $250 
C7 Practice/Program Leader $230 
C6 Senior Consultant $190 
C5 Senior Engineer/Scientist $165 
C4 Senior Project Engineer/Scientist $140 
C3 Project Engineer/Scientist $120 
C2 Staff Engineer/Scientist $100 
C1 Engineer/Scientist $90 
D3 Senior Draftsperson $105 
D2 Staff Draftsperson $85 
D1 Draftsperson $70 
T3 Senior Technician $100 
T2 Staff Technician $90 
T1 Technician $70 
B3 Senior Admin Support $90 
B2 Staff Admin Support $80 
B1 Admin Support $70 

 
Other direct costs, including materials, travel, subsistence, and subcontractor costs, will be invoiced at cost 
plus a minimum general and administrative fee of 15%.   

Non-labor direct project costs listed below will be billed at the following rates: 

 
SERVICE RATE 
CAD/GIS Computers $20/hour 
Color Photocopies $0.15/page 
Color Plotter (D&E size) $12/plot 
Vehicle (local use) Government Rate 

 
Rates for laboratory services and use of equipment owned by Golder Associates Inc. will be provided upon 
request. 
 
 
  

73



74



75



76

gmelvin
Text Box
Attachment A



77



78



79



80



81



PAGE 1 OF 6 

Kodiak WWTP 
City of Kodiak 

Engineering Design and Bidding Phase Professional 
Engineering Services for WWTP Centrifuge Addition 

Scope of Work, Schedule, Team, and Engineering Fees 

Background 
City of Kodiak (City) has been evaluating sewage sludge (biosolids) dewatering options to 
provide high cake dryness compared the cake from the existing belt filter press (BFP). High 
cake solid dryness is expected to save money on the City’s composting operation and 
replace the normal operation of the BFP as it nears the end of its service life. The goal is to 
leave the BFP in place to be available for use whenever the new centrifuge is out of service 
for maintenance or for other reasons. The City desires CH2M HILL Engineer’s Inc (CH2M) 
to provide the professional engineering services for this WWTP Centrifuge Addition 
Project. 

This scope of work is to assist the City with a project that would provide: 

 A skid-mounted Series D Andritz sludge thickening and dewatering centrifuge. The
unit is to be located in the existing sludge dewatering area of the City’s Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP). The City will procure the centrifuge under a different
contract directly with the manufacturer or its authorized supplier. CH2M will
support the City in this procurement as described in the scope of work below.

 All ancillary equipment and connections for successful centrifuge operation, O&M
manuals, operator training, and startup services are to be provided by the Designer,
equipment supplier, and construction contractor per the Contract Documents that
are to be developed by the design engineer, CH2M.  Only design and bid phase
professional services are included in this Scope of Work for CH2M.

Scope of Work 

Task 1: Design 
Provide City with Basis of Design Report, drawings, details, and specifications required to 
install a centrifuge dewatering system.   

The following packages will be developed: 

 50%, 95%, and 100% contract documents for centrifuge installation/construction
package including:

o Evaluation of existing concrete slab and potential reinforcements required to
support the centrifuge dewatering system

Attachment B

82



 

KODIAK SKID-MOUNTED CENTRIFUGE SCOPE OF WORK FOR CH2M PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAGE 2 OF 6 

o Centrifuge system procurement specification (assumes Andritz will be sole-
sourced or pre-purchased) 

o Installation location and detail for the skid-mounted centrifuge 
o Power for the centrifuge and related equipment and instruments (including 

transformer and feed conductor).  
o Non-Potable Service water tie-in (including a hose bib inside the building 

for wash-down) 
o Pumped centrate return system 
o Feed sludge supply line tie-in (assumes use of existing BFP feed pumps for 

centrifuge) 
o Polymer solution line tie-in (assumes use of existing BFP polymer solution 

system for centrifuge) 
o Centrifuge and WWTP SCADA Control interface 
o Cake Conveyor System to move cake to existing BFP conveyor 
o Construction cost estimate 

 
A 50% and 95% submittal of the construction/procurement packages will be prepared for 
review by City staff one week before the 50% and 95% design review meetings. A two hour 
review meeting will be scheduled for each procurement/construction packages. CH2M 
will provide one stamped original and one electronic copy (searchable PDF) of each final 
deliverable. 

Assumptions: 

The following services and activities will be provided or performed by City. 

1. City will manage all aspects of Contract award, grant and loan applications, processing, 
and administration, and coordination with all governing bodies for the construction 
project. City shall manage, coordinate, and undertake all aspects of Owner defined 
activities as presented in Division 1 and elsewhere in the Bidding Requirements and 
Contract Documents for the construction project, except as indicated otherwise 
elsewhere in this scope of work, within the limitations of the budget. City will be 
responsible for final approval of all change orders, claims, dispute resolution, pay 
requests and similar items based on input from CH2M. (CH2M has no scope of work 
under Bidding Requirements and Contract Documents Article 15 and 16 items related 
to Construction Contractor Suspension of Work and Termination and Dispute 
Resolution.) 

2. City will pay any and all permit, printing, inspection, testing, and other construction 
related fees, fines, or assessments. 

 The City will provide new equipment connection points for: 

o Non-Potable Service Water 

o Feed Sludge Supply 

o Polymer Solution Supply 

o Centrate Return 

o Existing electrical switchgear 

83



 

KODIAK SKID-MOUNTED CENTRIFUGE SCOPE OF WORK FOR CH2M PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAGE 3 OF 6 

o SCADA connection points 

 Existing Kodiak WWTP systems assumptions: 

o Adequate supply and pressure exists for the potable and non-potable water 
systems.  

o Adequate electrical capacity exists at the Switchgear 

o No new computer equipment and software will be required other than what 
is included with the Andritz equipment package that is pre-purchased by 
the City. 

o City will remove the existing lime storage and conveyor system. 

 Existing BFP feed pumps are to be utilized to pump feed sludge to the centrifuge. It 
is assumed that these existing pumps have the capacity to feed the centrifuge at an 
acceptable rate and that a new pump system will not have to be designed, supplied, 
and installed.  

 Existing polymer solution feed pumps are to be utilized to pump polymer solution 
to the centrifuge. It is assumed that these existing pumps have the capacity to feed 
the centrifuge at an acceptable rate and that a new pump system will not have to be 
designed, supplied, and installed.  

 The City will identify an empty power bucket in the existing switchgear 

 CH2M will prepare an engineer’s opinion of probable cost based on the 50% and 
95% design drawings and specifications. The engineer’s opinion of probable cost 
will be itemized by technical specification section. The City will have the 
opportunity to review the costs and provide comments.  Any cost opinions or 
project economic evaluations provided by CH2M will be on a basis of experience 
and judgment, but, since CH2M has no control over market conditions or bidding 
procedures, CH2M cannot warrant that bids, ultimate construction cost, or project 
economics will not vary from these opinions. 

 City staff will provide all needed information for Parts 1 and 2 of the Bidding 
Requirements and Contract Documents that will follow the format and structure 
used for the Monashka Pump House project by CH2M. 

 City staff will take the lead in procuring the sole-source centrifuge equipment. 
CH2M will provide assistance to the City for technical aspects of equipment 
procurement and review of equipment submittals. 

 CH2M is responsible for coordinating technical specifications, drawings, and details 
to provide a complete bid-ready package for the construction work required to 
accommodate the new centrifuge. 

 SCADA software programming is not included in this scope and will have to be 
provided under a separate agreement or by the Contractor’s integration 
subcontractor. 

 No seismic structural, mechanical, or electrical upgrades will be required. 

84



KODIAK SKID-MOUNTED CENTRIFUGE SCOPE OF WORK FOR CH2M PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAGE 4 OF 6 

 The level of effort is based on a design package that will include a total of 17
drawing as provided in the Drawing List table below:

Task 2: Bidding/Procurement Period Services 
Assist with technical questions during the equipment procurement and bidding phase of 
this project, addenda, and assist the City with bid evaluations. 

Task 3: Construction Phase Engineering Services 
It is anticipated that in the future the City will amend CH2M’s scope of work to include 
construction phase services. None of those services are included in this scope of work. 

If construction phase engineering services are provided after a contract amendment adding 
those services the presence or duties of CH2M's personnel at a construction site, whether as 
onsite representatives or otherwise, do not make CH2M or CH2M's personnel in any way 
responsible for those duties that belong to the City and/or the construction contractors or 
other entities, and do not relieve the construction contractors or any other entity of their 
obligations, duties, and responsibilities, including, but not limited to, all construction 
methods, means, techniques, sequences, and procedures necessary for coordinating and 
completing all portions of the construction work in accordance with the construction 
Contract Documents and any health or safety precautions required by such construction 
work. CH2M and CH2M’s personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any 
construction contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or 
any health or safety precautions and have no duty for inspecting, noting, observing, 
correcting, or reporting on health or safety deficiencies of the construction contractor(s) or 
other entity or any other persons at the site except CH2M's own personnel. The presence of 

85



KODIAK SKID-MOUNTED CENTRIFUGE SCOPE OF WORK FOR CH2M PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAGE 5 OF 6 

CH2M's personnel at a construction site is for the purpose of providing to the City a greater 
degree of confidence that the completed construction work will conform generally to the 
construction documents and that the integrity of the design concept as reflected in the 
construction documents has been implemented and preserved by the construction 
contractor(s). CH2M neither guarantees the performance of the construction contractor(s) 
nor assumes responsibility for construction contractor's failure to perform work in 
accordance with the construction documents. 

Task 4: Startup/Warranty Phase Assistance 
Startup and Warranty Phase services are not included in this scope of work.  It is 
anticipated the City will add these professional services at a later date. 

Schedule: 
Project is assumed to be conducted between October 2016 and September 2017 as shown 
the Schedule table below: 

Key CH2M Engineering Staff 
Project Manager – Floyd Damron, PE 

Process Engineer/Design Manager – Ian Van Blankenstein, PE 

Structural Engineer – Mark Parent, PE 

Electrical Engineer and I&C Engineer – Breck Alderson, PE 

Process Senior Consultant – David Oerke, PE 

86



KODIAK SKID-MOUNTED CENTRIFUGE SCOPE OF WORK FOR CH2M PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PAGE 6 OF 6 

All staff are in CH2M’s Anchorage office except David Oerke. 

Other engineers and technicians will be utilized, as needed, to complete the design and 
construction phase tasks. 

Engineering Services Lump Sum and T&M Fees Summary Table 
CH2M proposes to perform the Task 1 Design and Task 2 Bid Phase Services for a Lump 
Sum Fee Amount of $153,500.  $7,500 is provided as Time and Expense services as needed.  
The total proposed contract amount is $161,000.  Note that Exhibit B is CH2M’s Fee 
Schedule for Time and Expense Services. 

87


	City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for June 22, 2017
	Approval of Minutes of the June 8, 2017, Regular Council Meeting and June 9, 2017, Special Council Meeting
	III. Persons to Be Heard
	a.	Public Hearing, Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs

	V. New Business
	a.	Resolution No. 2017–17, Amending Sections 9, 10, and 12 of the Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Tariffs
	b.	Resolution No. 2017–18, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the American Legion Post 17 for Use of Public Property in Conjunction With Fourth of July Celebrations
	c.	Resolution No. 2017–19, Authorizing the Issuance of a Permit to the Kodiak Football League for its Football Camp Fundraiser and to Collect Admission Fees and Sell Concessions at Baranof Park
	d.	Authorization of Animal Control Contract With the Kodiak Island Borough
	e.	Authorization of Bid Award for FY2018 Petroleum Products
	f.	Authorization of Bid Award for FY2018 Sodium Chloride
	g.	Authorization of Bid Award of Kodiak Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge Installation, Project No. 17-03/7519
	h.	Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Upper Bettinger Dam Seismic Stability Analysis, Project No. 18-01/7042
	i.	Authorization of Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Contract for Wastewater Treatment Plant Centrifuge Installation Construction Phase Engineering Services, Project No. 17-03/7519




